








CITY MANAGER’S REPORT, PRESENTATION AND POSSIBLE DISCUSSION

Update: US Hwy 183 expansion project, Blackjack to Wal-Mart; the last design
puts all drainage waters on the west side until it gets down to the ditch between
Smith Supply and Walmart; West side almost complete.

Update: Drainage work continues on Mesquite, Braden, Wichita, and Vega
Street areas; detention ponds and other work about 98% complete; patching
and paving of streets should be completed within the next 10 days, weather-
permitting. Rain has delayed paving.

Update: E. Walnut Street Neighborhood Drainage Project, utility clearance work
completed; contract putting down first course of base soon and then will start the
curbing; rain has been a problem.

Update: Bid advertisements for the Ash, Comal, and Pine Street Drainage
Project are now planned within the next 30 days; utility clearances are taking
fonger than anticipated. We will wait on bidding out to conflict with City crews
working on water/sewer clearances; a neighborhood meeting will be set up after
the bidding but before the project starts.

Update: Utility main extension projects in western corridor are being designed
and will be ready for bid in about 60 days.

Report: Welcome Spring Day Event in City Park held on Saturday, March 18
with Kid Fish, Bouncy House, Free Hot Dogs, Petting Zoo, and Chamber Chili
Cook-off.

Report: Greater Caldwell County Hispanic Chamber of Commerce Banquet held
Sat March 18.

Reminder: Spring Festival at the Lockhart Animal Sheiter on Saturday, April 1,
starting at 11 am with kids show, food, and prizes showcasing the improvements
recently completed at the shelter.

Reminder: Lockhart Cowtown Stroll, Saturday, April 1, Downtown starting at 4
pm.

Reminder: City Wide Residential Spring Clean Up starts first Wednesday in
April.

Reminder: Don't Mess with Texas Trash Off on Saturday, April 8t".

Reminder: 11" Annual Lockhart Kiwanis 5K Stampede or 1K Fun Run/Walk,
Saturday, April 15%.

Reminder: The Texas Mustang Club will have about 300 Mustangs on display at
the First Lockhart Baptist Church Parking lots on W. Prairie Street starting at 1
pm Saturday, April 15, after the Kiwanis events.

Announcement: Taking City Pool Lifeguard Applications.

Announcement: City of Lockhart has received the LCRA Community Grant in
the amount of $25,000 to help with lighting at the Cpl. Jason K. LaFleur Sports
Complex

4 0of 5
City Council —-March 21, 2017



8. COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMENTS — ITEMS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST

(**tterns of Cormmmunily Interest defined below}

9. ADJOURNMENT

** ftems of Community Interest includes: 1)expressions of thanks, congratulations or condolence; 2) information
regarding holiday schedules; 3) an honorary or salutary recognition of a public official, pubiic employee, or other
citizen, except that a discussion regarding a change in the status of a person’s public office or public employment is
not an honorary or salufary recognition for purposes of this subdivision; 4) a reminder about an upcoming event
organized or sponsored by the governing body; 5) information regarding a social, ceremonial, or community event
organized or sponsored by an entity other than the governing body that was attended or is scheduled to be atfended
by a member of the governing body or an official employee of the municipality; and 6) annhouncements involving an
imminent threat to the public health and safely of people in the municipality that has arisen after the posting of the
agenda. (SB 1182 - effective 09/01/2009)

* Once approved to be on the agenda, staff requests you register to speak prior to the meeting. Deadline for specific
items on the agenda is Noon Tuesday prior to the Regular Meeting.

If, during the course of the meeting, any discussion of any item on the agenda should be held in executive or closed session, the
City Council will convene in such executive or closed session, in accordance with the provisions of the Government Code, Title 5,
Subchapter D to consider one or more matters pursuant to the following:

Section 5561.071. Private consultation with its attorney to seek advice about pending or contemplated litigation; and/or
settlement offer; (2) and/or a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the government body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules
of Professional Conduct of the State of Texas clearly conflicts with this chapter.

Section 551.072. To deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease cor value of real property if deliberation in an open
meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations with a third person.

Section 561.073. To deliberate a negetiated contract for a prospective gift or donation to the state or the governmental
body if deliberation in an open meeting would have a detrimental effect on the positicn of the governmental body in negotiations
with a third person.

Section 551.074. To deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluaticn, reassignment, duties, discipline, or dismissal
of a public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer or employee.

Section 551.076. To deliberate the deployment, or specific occasions for implementation, of security personnel or
devices.

Section 551.086. To deliberate vote or take final action on any competitive matters relating to public power utilities.

Section 551.087. To deliberate or discussion regarding commercial or financial information that the governmental body
has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, stay, or expand in of near the territory of
the governmental body and with which the governmental body is conducting economic development negotiations; or to deliberate
the offer of a financial or other incentive to a business prospect.

Section 551.088. To deliberate a test item or information related to a test item if the governmental body believes that the
test item may be included in a test the governmental body administers to individuals who seek to obtain or renew a license or
certificate that is necessary to engage in an activity.

After discussion of any matters in executive session, any final acticn or vote taken will be in public by the City Council.

City Council shall have the right at anytime to seek legal advice in Executive Session from its Attorney on any
agenda item, whether posted for Executive Session or not.

| certify that the above notice of meeting was posted on the bulletin board in the Municipal Building, 308
West San Antomo Street, Lockhart, Texas, on the /7 day of _/7'/icl 2017 at
' f’* . | further certify that the following News Media was properly notified of this
meetlng as stated above Lockhart Post-Reqister
s \
} a",;’w,u‘/' (/ar/f"'f_'-"‘f{'f"m"'/f'i’
Connie Constancio, TRMC
City Secretary

5of5
City Council -March 2}, 2017






RESOLUTION NO. 2017-06

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF LOCKHART,
TEXAS, RESCINDING RESOLUTION 2016-12 AUTHORIZING A
TYPE 4A PROJECT UNDER SECTION 4B OF THE TEXAS
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION ACT OF 1979, AS
AMENDED, FOR FUNDING OF HILL COUNTRY FOODWORKS,
LLC IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $95,000 INCLUDING
BUILDING AND LAND LOCATED AT 215 E. MLK, JR.
INDUSTRIAL BLVD. AND THAT CERTAIN 1.806 ACRES OF
LAND TO THE EAST BOTH OF WHICH ARE DESCRIBED AS
LOTS 4A AND 4B, OF THE AMENDING PLAT FOR THE
RESUBDIVISION OF LOT 4, BLOCK I, AND LOTS 6, 7 AND 15,
BLOCK 2, OF THE AMENDING PLAT FOR THE
RESUBDIVISION PLAT OF LOCKHART INDUSTRIAL PARK II,

REVISION NO. 2, IMPROVEMENTS, AND PROFESSIONAL
SERVICES.

WHEREAS, the Texas Economic Development Act of 1979 (the Act) provides for the
funding of certain projects for the development, retention, or expansion of manufacturing
and industrial facilities, including expenditures required or suitable for infrastructure
necessary to promote or develop new or expanded business enterprises, and to create or
retain primary jobs within the state; and

WHEREAS, the Lockhart City Council had previously approved by Resolution 2016-

12 a 4B Economic Development project by HILL COUNTRY FOODWORKS LLC as
per the attached Resolution 2016-12; and

WHEREAS, HILL COUNTRY FOODWORKS, LLC has notified the Lockhart
Economic Development Corporation that the company is still commiited to expanding
into the City of Lockhart at 215 E MLK Jr. Industrial Blvd., but the scope of the project
has changed considerably from what was originally planned; and

WHEREAS, HILL COUNTRY FOODWORKS, LLC has committed with the new
project to purchase the 215 E MLK Jr Industrial Blvd building and expand it by 5,000
square feet on the north side in lieu of expanding to east; and

WHEREAS, the Lockhart Economic Development Corporation realizes that because of

the scope of the new project that Hill County Foodworks, LLC no longer needs the
separate east lot for its initial expansion; and

WHEREAS, the Lockhart Economic Development Corporation unanimously rescinded

its’ approving resolution of the originai HILL. COUNTRY FOODWORKS, LLC project
on Monday, March 13, 2017, at a called and publicly advertised meeting:

7



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Lockhart City Council as follows;
SECTION 1. That the Lockhart City Council hereby rescinds in its entirety the HILL

COUNTRY FOODWORKS, I.LC, project approved by Resolution 2016-12 and hereby
directs that a copy of that project resolution be attached to this rescinding resolution.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Lockhart City Council held on
this 21™ day of March 2017.

CITY OF LOCKHART

Lew White, Mayor

ATTEST:

Connie Constancio, TRMC
City Secretary






Blvd. at a putchase price of $380,000 and that certain 1.806 acres of land at a purchase price of
$75,000, both of which are described in the caption of this resolution, shall use additional project
funds of up to $30,000 to help pay, and/or reimburse HILL COUNTRY FOODWORKS, LLC,
for costs of improvements to the Properties and/or equipment, and shall use additional funds of
up to $65,000 to employ a minimum of 25 Full Time Equivalent (“FTE”) employees, for a total
project value not to exceed $95,000,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
LOCKHART, TEXAS THAT:

SECTION 1. The foregoing recitals are hereby adopted and incorporated herein for all
purposes.

SECTION 2. The HILL COUNTRY FOODWORKS LLC. project is HEREBY
APPROVED as follows:

A) the LEDC shall propose to work with HILL. COUNTRY FOODWORKS, LLC
under the conditions set out as follows:

1) f HILL. COUNTRY FOODWORKS, LLC chooses to purchase that certain
building located 215 E MLK, JR Industrial Blvd. at a purchase price of $380,000 and that
certain 1.806 acres of land at a purchase price of $75,000, both of which are located in

Lo C—khﬂu" t __the Lockhart Industrial Park 11jshall use additional project funds of up to $30,000 to help
€ conomte pay, andfor reimburse HILL COUNTRY FOODWORKS, LLC, for costs of
pevel Dﬂmd improvements to the Properties and/or equipment, and shall use additional funds of up to
or P $65,000 to employ a mintmum of 25 Full Time Equivalent (“FTE”) employees, for a total
project value not to exceed $95,000 for the development, retention, or expansion of a
manufacturing and industrial facility which may include expenditures required or suitable

for infrastructure necessary to promote or develop a new or expanded business enterprise.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Lockhart city Council held on this 7th

day of June, 2016.
CITY OF LOCKJ-IART
Lew Wlute Maym

ATTEST: APPROVED A FORM:

@On cshanaid
Conme Constancio, TRMC Pcter
City chgg't]ary City Atto ey
RO S )
NG
IO Y
B W Resolution No 2016-12
R TR o~ “L* ECQ DEV City Council Items Resolutions 2016

- o~ . -
“, ¢ N B Page 2 of 2



LOCKHART ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
RESOLUTION NO. 2017-03

A RESOLUTION OF LOCKHART ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION  RESCINDING  RESOLUTION 2016-06
AUTHORIZING A TYPE 4A PROJECT UNDER SECTION 4B OF
THE TEXAS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION ACT
OF 1979, AS AMENDED, FOR FUNDING OF HILL COUNTRY
FOODWORKS, LLC IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $95,000
INCLUDING BUILDING AND LAND LOCATED AT 215 E. MLK,
JR. INDUSTRIAL BLVD. AND THAT CERTAIN 1.806 ACRES OF
LAND TO THE EAST BOTH OF WHICH ARE DESCRIBED AS
LOTS 4A AND 4B, OF THE AMENDING PLAT FOR THE
RESUBDIVISION OF LOT 4, BLOCK I, AND LOTS 6, 7 AND 15,
BLOCK 2, OF THE AMENDING PLAT FOR THE
RESUBDIVISION PLAT OF LOCKHART INDUSTRIAL PARK II,
REVISION NO. 2, IMPROVEMENTS, AND PROFESSIONAL
SERVICES.

WHEREAS, the Texas Economic Development Act of 1979 (the Act) provides for the
funding of certain projects for the development, retention, or expansion of manufacturing
and industrial facilities, including expenditures required or suitable for infrastructure
necessary to promote or develop new or expanded business enterprises, and to create or
retain primary jobs within the state; and

WHEREAS, the Lockhart Economic Development Corporation had previously
approved by Resolution 2016-06 a 4B Economic Development project by HILL
COUNTRY FOODWORKS LLC as per the attached Resolution 2016-06; and

WHEREAS, HILL COUNTRY FOODWORKS, LLC has notified the Lockhart
Economic Development Corporation that the company is still committed to expanding
into the City of Lockhart at 215 E MLK Jr. Industrial Blvd., but the scope of the project
has changed considerably from what was originally planned; and

WHEREAS, HILL COUNTRY FOODWORKS, LLC has commiited with the new
project to purchase the 215 E MLK Jr Industrial Blvd building and expand it by 5,000
square feet on the north side in lieu of expanding to east; and

WHEREAS, the Lockhart Economic Development Corporation realizes that because of

the scope of the new project that Hill County Foodworks, LLC no longer needs the-

separate east lot for its initial expansion;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Lockhart Economic Development
Corporation as follows:

SECTION 1. That the Lockhart Economic Development Corporation hereby rescinds in
its entirety the HILL. COUNTRY FOODWORKS, LLC, project approved by Resolution
2016-06 and hereby directs that a copy of that project resolution be attached to this
rescinding resolution.

[






LOCKHART ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
RESOLUTION NO. 2016-06

A RESOLUTION OF LOCKHART ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION APPROVING A 4A TYPE PROJECT UNDER SECTION
4B OF THE TEXAS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
ACT OF 1979, AS AMENDED, FOR FUNDING OF HILL COUNTRY
FOODWORKS, LLC IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $95,000
INCLUDING BUILDING AND LAND LOCATED AT 215 E. MLK, JR.
INDUSTRIAL BLVD, AND THAT CERTAIN 1.806 ACRES OF LAND TO
THE EAST BOTH OF WHICH ARE DESCRIBED AS LOTS 4A AND 4B,
OF THE AMENDING PLAT FOR THE RESUBDIVISION OF LOT 4,
BLOCK I, AND LOTS 6, 7 AND 15, BLOCK 2, OF THE AMENDING
PLAT FOR THE RESUBDIVISION PLAT OF LOCKHART INDUSTRIAL
PARK II, REVISION NO. 2, , IMPROVEMENTS, AND PROFESSIONAL
SERVICES.

WHEREAS, the Texas Economic Development Act of 1979 (the Act) provides for the funding
of certain projects for the development, retention, or expansion of manufacturing and industrial
facilities, including expenditures required or suitable for infrastructure necessary to promote or
develop new ot expanded business enterprises, and to create or retain primary jobs within the
state; and :

WHEREAS, HILL COUNTRY FOODWORKS, LLC provides food processing services, and
related services and products; and

WHEREAS, HILL, COUNTRY FOODWORKS, LLC desires to locate a manufacturing
facility for the management, development and/or production of its food processing and related
services and products within the city limits of Lockhart; and '

WHEREAS, the location of the proposed HILL COUNTRY FOODWORKS, LLC facility in
Lockhart will create primary jobs and expand economic growth and opportunities in the City, the
surrounding area, and the State; and :

WHEREAS, HILL COUNTRY FOODWORKS, LLC proposes to create at least 25 new Full
Time Equivalent jobs in the Lockhart area to work at the proposed facility; and

WHEREAS, the LEDC has determined that the proposed HILL COUNTRY FOODWORKS,
LLC facility meets the criteria for a project pursuant to the Act; and

- WHEREAS, an existing metal building owned- by Lockhat Economic Development
Corporation with a footprint of approximately 6,900 square feet at 215 E. MLK, Jr. Industrial
Blvd that became available in the Lockhart Industrial Park II, and

Resolution No 2016-06
“L" ECO DEV LEDC Resolutions 2016
Page 1 of 2



WHEREAS, the Lockhart Economic Development Corporalion proposes to sef} to HILL
COUNTRY FOODWORKS, LLC that certain building located a! 215 E MLK, JR Industrial
Bivd. at a purchase price of $380,000 and that certain 1.806 acres of land to the east at a
purchase price of $75,000 both of which are described as Lots 4A and 4B, and further described
in caption of this resolution, shall use additional project funds of up to $30,000 to help pay,
and/or reimburse HILL COUNTRY FOODWORKS, LLC, for costs of improvements to the
Properties and/or equipment, and shall use additional funds of vp to $65,000 to employ a
minimum of 25 Full Time Equivalent (“FTE") employees, for a total project value not to exceed
$95,000.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Lockhart Ecomomic Development
Corporation as follows:

SECTION 1. That real property located in Lockhart Industrial Part II is to be used to induce job
creation and investment in Lockhart,

SECTION 2. That Lockhart Economic Development Corporation proposes the project to the
City Council of the City of Lockhart for approval of the sale of land, building, building
improvements, and professional services in an amount not to exceed $95,000; for the creation 25
primary jobs; for the development, retention, or expansion of a manufacturing and industrial
facility which may include expenditures required or suitable for infrastructure necessary to
promote or develop a new or expanded business enterprise.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Lockhart Economic Development
Corporation held on this 6th day of June, 2016.

Lockhart Economic Development Corp.

ATTEST: j .Islaj?h ir ::y
. /- ’4?5' :
Sandra Mauldin, Secretary Vance Rodgers, President

Resolution No 2016-06
“L” ECO DEV LEDC Resolutions 2016
Page2of 2

4



DRAFT
LOCKHART ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (LEDC)
MINUTES
Monday — March 13, 2017 - 6:00 P.M.
CITY HALL UPSTAIRS MEETING AREA
308 WEST SAN ANTONIO STREET

Board Members Present: Fermin T. Islas, Chairperson; Morris Alexander, Ken Doran, Frank Estrada, Bemie
Rangel; and Dyral Thomas

Board Members Absent: Alan Fielder
6 of seven members were present creating a quorum of 6 at the time the meeting was called to
order.

Staff Present: Vance Rodgers, President, Jeff Hinson, Vice President and Rob Tobias, Director Economic
Development,

1. CALL TO ORDER
The Lockhart Economic Development Corporation meeting was called to order at 6:01 p.m. by
Chairman Islas. The Chairman confirmed a quorum of 6 were present at the time the meeting was called to
order.

2. DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION
A. Discussion and/or action to consider approval of the minutes of January 11, 2017.

Muation to approve minntes as presented: Motion byv: Morris Alexander Second by Bernie Ranwel Vote: 6 of 6

B. Discussion and/or action to consider acceptance of financials and sales tax report.

Motion io accept financial reports as presented: Motion by: Bernie Rungel Second by: Morris Alexuider

Fote:6 of 6

C. Discussion and/or action regarding Resolution 2017-03 rescinding Resolution 2016-06 whereby Hill
Country Food Works LLC planned to purchase 215 E MLK Jr Industrial Blvd and the vacant adjacent lot
to the cast and provide certain improvements to the structure

Jacob Cathey, with Hill Country Foodworks, introduced himself to the LEDC Board and was present to
provide further background on this project. Mr. Rodgers, LEDC President stated that this was a 4B project that
was previously approved by the LEDC board and included the purchase of the vacant lot to the east of 215 E.
MLK Jr. Blvd on which to build an addition. Mr. Rodgers stated that this prior resolution would need to be
rescinded in its entirety, due to the company’s plan to forego the purchase of the vacant lot.

Mr. Rodgers stated the company’s plan now included constructing a 5,000-square foot building on the north
end of the existing building, instead of expanding to the east. This will give them what they need for their
business at this time. He reiterated that this resolution will rescind the previous project.

Motion 1o approved Resolution 201703 as preseated: Motion by: Morris Aexander Second bv: Ken Doran
Fote: 6 0f6

LOCKHART ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (LEDC)
MINUTES
Monday, March 13, 2017 - 6:00 P.M.,
CITY HALL UPSTAIRS MEETING AREA
308 WEST SAN ANTONIO STREET

Page 1 of 4 \ 6



DRAFT

D. Discussion and/or action regarding LEDC President’s recommendation to use LEDC funds to enhance the

property at 215 E MLK Industrial Blvd by placing a structural select material pad on the north side of the

building requiring rental of equipment/trucks and purchase of select fill materials all of which would not
exceed $8,549.

Mr. Rodgers stated the recommendation before the LEDC Board would be to add in a structural pad in the
back of the building on which to construct the 5,000-square foot addition. Mr. Rodgers stated that this would
require the dirt to be removed for at least two feet. Mr. Rodgers stated that this would enhance the property for
use by the company. He stated that if for some reason the project does not go through, other companies had
expressed interest in purchasing this property and having this foundation would enhance the attractiveness of

this property.

Mr. Rodgers stated this work would be done by city crews. The cost for this project would be $8,549. He
stated if this was done by external contractors the cost could be up to $25,000.

Dyral Thomas asked what the square footage is on the property. Mr. Rodgers stated approximately 6,900
square feet are existing, with 5,000 more to be added.

Motion to use LEDC funds to enhance the properiv at 215 E. MLK fndustrial Blvd by placing structiral select
material pad on the norith side of the building requiring rental of equipment:irucks und purchase of select fill

matericls afl of which would not exceed 58349,

Mortion bv: Frank Estrada Second by: Ihral Thomas Tote: 6 of 6

PUBLIC HEARING

Open Public Hearing ai: 6:12 PAM

A. After proposed project presentation by staff, invite public to provide comments regarding the proposed
development by Hill Country Food Works LLC with a new scope that includes an initial estimated
investment of $1.275 million and the employment of a minimum of 20 FTE employees with a minimum
annual wage of $30,250 to be maintained over the three (3) year agreement period with reimbursable
incentives worth up to $186,000.

Mr Islay usked if there weas anyone present who would like 1o speak in opposition of the proposed project and
incentives? There wes none.

Mr. Rodgers asked Mr. Cathey if he would like to provide information regarding the new project. Mr. Cathey
stated that the current 6,900 square foot building will be remodeled. 3,000 square feet will be the production
area. Another 1,000 square feet is going to be the packaging area. The upstairs will continue to be office space.
The 5,000 square feet to be added will have loading docks, pallet racks and bathrooms. 1,000 square feet will
be used for cold storage.

Mr. Cathey stated they would be bringing in 10-12 employees with them. They are expecting to hire additional
employees.

Mr, Alexander asked if there was a timeline in place of when they expect to move in. Mr. Cathey stated that
the plan for move in would be sometime in late June.

Mr. Isius asked if there was anvone present who would Tike to speak in favor of the proposed project and
incentives? There ways none.

LOCKHART ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION {LEDC)
MINUTES
Monday, March 13, 2017 - 6:00 P.M.
CITY HALL UPSTAIRS MEETING AREA
308 WEST SAN ANTONIO STREET

Page 2 of 4 I (0



DRAFT

B. CLOSE PUBLIC HEARING

Close Public Hearing ai 6:135 PM

4. DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION
A. Discussion and/or action to consider Resolution 2017-04 approving the revised the Hill Country
Foodworks L1.C
project and terms as an Economic Development 4B project and to recommend approval to the Lockhart
City Council.

Mr. Rodgers stated the main item to review is the incentives. He stated that the incentives were based on the
company maintaining 20 full time employees with an average salary of $30,250. This agreement would be
over a three-year period. Mr. Rodgers stated that LEDC will reimburse up to $2,600 per job and they must
maintain those 20 jobs over a three-year period. The total value of this part of the incentive is $52,000.

Mr. Rodgers also stated that Hill Country Foodworks would also be reimbursed up to $112,000 after proof is
provided that $1.12 million is spent on property improvements. This also must be completed in the 36-month
period.

Permits and Impact Fees are estimated at $12,000. $10,000 is the proposed cost for transformers. This would
make the total incentive package proposed for the project over a three-year period, a total $186,000. These
incentives are also contingent on the purchase of the property from the LEDC for $380,000.

Motion 1o approve Resolution 201 7-04 as presenied: Motion byv: Morris Alexander Second by Bernie Rangel
Vore: 6 0f6

B. Discussion and/or action regarding discussion of the new Economic Impact Data Sheet for Hill Country
Food Works which has an enhanced scope.

The Impact Data Sheet was presented to the LEDC Board. Mr. Rodgers pointed out the total investment is
estimated to be $1.475 million, that included the purchase of the building.

Mr. Doran asked if the number of employees, as well as their salaries would be verified. Mr. Rodgers stated
that they are required to provide proof of compliance and could use a Payroll Register to verify jobs as an
example.

C. Discussion and/or action to consider the Economic Development Performance Agreement with Hill
Country Foodworks LLC by which the company agrees to purchase the building at 215 E MLK Jr
Industrial Blvd for $380,000, enlarge the structure by about 5,000 square feet, buy equipment, and make
other improvements totaling an estimated initial investment of $1.275 million, and to employ and
maintain a minimum of 20 FTE employees with an average annual wage of $30,250 for the three (3) year
agreement period with LEDC providing up to $186,000 in reimbursable incentives.

Motion (o approve proposed Economic Development Performance Agreement as presented.

Motion: Ken Doran Second: Bernie Raneel Fote: 6 of 6

LOCKHART ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (LEDC)
MINUTES
Monday, Mareh 13, 2017 - 6:00 P.M.
CITY HALL UPSTAIRS MEETING AREA
308 WEST SAN ANTONIO STREET
Page 3 of 4 { 7



DRAFT
5. DISCUSSION ONLY
A. Discussion after staff update regarding Benny Boyd Auto Group proposed project.

Mr. Rodgers stated that Benny Boyd Auto Group has a contract on the 20 acres south of Walmart along US-
183. They are planning on building an auto facility that will be approximately 20,000-30,000 square feet and
create up to 35 jobs. This will be brought before the LEDC Board for a possible 4B project in the near future
should the company decide to proceed.

B. Discussion regarding the Arete Emergency Health Care Project.

Mr. Rodgers reported that this project has been revised. He stated that they have hired an architect/property
planner to create a site plan for the 16-acre tract. They are currently trying to determine where they will put the
initial 2-acre, 8,000-10,000-square foot building on this 16-acre site. Mr. Rodgers stated this project will go
before the LEDC Board as an amended project.

C. Discussion after update regarding other Economic Development Activity.

Mr. Islas asked for an update on Schlotsky’s. Mr. Tobias stated they are currently working with the Texas State
Small Business Development Center (SBDC) to complete a financial package and are about 60% completed.

Mr. Tobias shared some brief background on leads from the Governor’s Office and how the staff was
collaborating with the Austin Chamber and the GSMP, our regional partners. He noted that he would provide
a monthly recap in the future.

He also noted that he was collaborating with the Texas State SBDC on a number of small projects requiring
technical assistance. This free service is available to most new and existing businesses and create benchmarks
for growth,

Mr. Tobias also referenced the 2013 Sustainable Places Project and the framework provided for the potential
redevelopment of the historic district. He noted that the study highlighted several projects, as well as a
potential funding mechanism to consider. The LEDC and City Council will be jointly discussing this funding
mechanism in the near future.

6. REPORTS/DISCUSSION
A. Presentation related to Texas Capital Fund grant program was made by Mr. Rudy Ruiz of the Community
Development Management Corporation, a Lockhart-based grant consultant.

Mr. Ruiz briefly outlined the pros and cons of this state grant program and its potential application in Lockhart.
He also shared his experience with other federal and state grant programs that could be of value to the LEDC.

7. ADJOURN

Moldion to Adiourn

Morion: Ken Dorgn Secomd: Beruie Rangel Vate: 8 of 6

Minutes approved this the day of , 201

Fermin T. Islas, Chairman

Vance Rodgers, President, LEDC

LOCKHART ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (LEDC)
MINUTES
Monday, March 13, 2017 - 6:00 P.M.
CITY HALL UPSTAIRS MEETING AREA
308 WEST SAN ANTONIO STREET ( 43

Page 4 of 4






RESOLUTION NO. 2017-07

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF LOCKHART, TEXAS
APPROVING A 4A TYPE PROJECT UNDER SECTION 4B OF THE
TEXAS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION ACT OF 1979,
AS AMENDED, FOR FUNDING OF HILL COUNTRY FOODWORKS,
LLC. IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $186,000 TO EMPLOY A
MINIMUM OF 20 EMPLOYEES WITH AN AVERAGE ANNUAL WAGE
OF §30,250 AND AN ESTIMATED INVESTMENT OF $1.475 MILLION
OVER THE THREE (3) YEAR CONTRACT PERIOD FOR LAND &
BUILDING LOCATED AT 215 E. MLK, JR. INDUSTRIAL BLVD.,
IMPROVEMENTS, AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES.

WHEREAS, the Texas Economic Development Act of 1979 (the Act) provides for the funding
of certain projects for the development, retention, or expansion of manufacturing and industrial
facilities, including expenditures required or suitable for infrastructure necessary to promote or

develop new or expanded business enterprises, and to create or retain primary jobs within the
state; and

WHEREAS, HILL COUNTRY FOODWORKS, LLC provides food processing services, and
related services and products; and

WHEREAS, HILL COUNTRY FOODWORKS, LLC desires to locate a manufacturing
facility for the management, development and/or production of its food processing and related
services and products within the city limits of Lockhart; and

WHEREAS, the location of the proposed HILL COUNTRY FOODWORKS, LLC facility in

Lockhart will create primary jobs and expand economic growth and opportunities in the City, the
surrounding area, and the State; and

WHEREAS, HILL COUNTRY FOODWORKS, LLC proposes to create at least 20 new Full
Time Equivalent jobs in the Lockhart area to work at the proposed facility; and

WHEREAS, the Lockhart Economic Development Corporation (LEDC) has determined that the
proposed HILL COUNTRY FOODWORKS, LLC facility meets the criteria for a project
pursuant to the Act; and

WHEREAS, an existing metal building owned by LEDC with a footprint of approximately

6,900 square feet at 215 E. MLK, Jr. Industrial Blvd. became available in the Lockhart Industrial
Park II, and

WHEREAS, the LEDC proposes to sell to HILL. COUNTRY FOODWORKS, LLC that
certain building located at 215 E. MLK, Jr. Industrial Blvd. at a purchase price of $380,000
located in the Lockhart Industrial Park II, and shall use additional project reimbursable funds up

Resolution No 2017-07 7/0
Page | of 2



to $134,000 to help pay HILL COUNTRY FOODWORKS, LLC, for costs of improvements
to the Properties and/or equipment, and shall use additional funds of up to $52,000 to employ a
minimum of 20 Full Time Equivalent (“FTE”) employees with an average annual wage of
$30,250 provided that appropriate proof of employment and wages throughout the three (3) year
period are validated, for a total project value not to exceed $186,000.

WHEREAS, the LEDC held a public hearing and discussed and approved this project on
March 13, 2017.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Lockhart City Council as follows:

SECTION 1. That real property located in Lockhart Industrial Park II is to be used to induce
job creation and investment in Lockhart.

SECTION 2. That the Lockhart Economic Development Corporation proposes the project to the
Lockhart City Council for approval of the sale of land, building, building improvements, and
professional services in an amount not to exceed $186,000; for the creation of 20 FTE primary
jobs; and, for the development, retention, or expansion of a manufacturing and industrial facility
which may include expenditures required or suitable for infrastructure necessary to promote or
develop a new or expanded business enterprise.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Lockhart City Council held on this 21st
day of March 2017.

City of Lockhart

ATTEST: Lew White, Mayor

Connie Constancio, TRMC
City Secretary

Resolution No 2017-07 i l
Page 2 of 2









LOCKHART ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE

The Directors of the Lockhart Economic Development Corporation (LEDC) will conduct
a public hearing on Monday, March 13, 2017, at 6:00 p.m. in the Upstairs Conference
Room at Lockhart City Hall, 308 West San Antonio Street, Lockhart, Texas to discuss a
project under Section 4B of the Texas Economic Development Corporation Act of 1979,

The company that desires to expand to Lockhart is Hill Country Foodworks LLC. The
initial total investment is estimated at $1,275,000 over the first three (3) years with a
minimum of 20 newly created full time equivalent jobs making an annual average wage
of $30,250 during first three years of operation. The LEDC will be considering
reimbursable incentives worth up to $186,000 to be offered to the company to entice their
expansion to Lockhart. All interested parties are encouraged to attend and present their
views. Persons with disabilities that plan to attend this meeting should contact the City
Secretary’s office to arrange for assistance. Individuals who require aids or services for
this meeting should contact City Hall at least two days before the meeting.

Lockhart Economic Development Corporation

24



DRAFT
LOCKHART ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (LEDC)
MINUTES
Monday — March 13, 2017 - 6:00 P.M.
CITY HALL UPSTAIRS MEETING AREA
308 WEST SAN ANTONIO STREET

Board Members Present: Fermin T. Isias, Chairperson; Morris Alexander, Ken Doran, Frank Estrada, Bernie
Rangel; and Dyral Thomas

Board Members Absent: Alan Fielder

6 of seven members were present creating a quorum of 6 at the time the meeting was called to
order.

Staff Present: Vance Rodgers, President, Jeff Hinson, Vice President and Rob Tobias, Director Economic
Development,

1. CALL TO ORDER
The Lockhart Economic Development Corporation meeting was called to order at 6:01 p.m. by

Chairman [slas. The Chairman confirmed a quorum of 6 were present at the time the meeting was called to
order.

2. DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION
A. Discussion and/or action to consider approval of the minutes of January 11, 2017.

Motion to approve minntes as presended: Motion by: Morris Alexander Second by: Bernie Rangel Vote 6 of 6

B. Discussion and/or action to consider acceptance of financials and sales tax report.

Motion to_accept fingncial veporis as presented: Motion by: Bernie Rungel Second byv: Morris Alexander

Vote:5 of 6

C. Discussion andfor action regarding Resolution 2017-03 rescinding Resolution 2016-06 whereby Hill
Country Food Works LLC planned to purchase 215 E MLK Jr Industrial Blvd and the vacant adjacent lot
to the east and provide certain improvements to the structure

Jacob Cathey, with Hill Country Foodworks, introduced himself to the LEDC Board and was present to
provide further background on this project. Mr. Rodgers, LEDC President stated that this was a 4B project that
was previously approved by the LEDC board and included the purchase of the vacant lot to the east of 215 E.
MLK Jr. Blvd on which to build an addition. Mr. Rodgers stated that this prior resolution would need to be
rescinded in its entirety, due to the company’s plan to forego the purchase of the vacant lot.

Mr. Rodgers stated the company’s plan now included constructing a 5,000-square foot building on the north
end of the existing building, instead of expanding to the east. This will give them what they need for their
business at this time. He reiterated that this resolution will rescind the previous project.

Motion (o approved Resolution 2001 7-03 as presented: Motion byv: Morris Alexander Second by: Ken Doran

Vore: 6 of 6

LOCKHART ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (LEDC)
MINUTES
Monday, March 13, 2017 - 6:00 P.M.
CITY HALL UPSTAIRS MEETING AREA )
308 WEST SAN ANTONIO STREET 26

Page 1 of 4



DRAFT
D. Discussion and/or action regarding LEDC President’s recommendation to use LEDC funds to enhance the
property at 215 E MLK Industrial Blvd by placing a structural select material pad on the north side of the

building requiring rental of equipment/trucks and purchase of select fill materials all of which would not
exceed $8,549.

Mr. Rodgers stated the recommendation before the LEDC Board would be to add in a structural pad in the
back of the building on which to construct the 5,000-square foot addition. Mr. Rodgers stated that this would
require the dirt to be removed for at least two feet. Mr. Rodgers stated that this would enhance the property for
use by the company. He stated that if for some reason the project does not go through, other companies had
expressed interest in purchasing this property and having this foundation would enhance the attractiveness of
this property.

Mr. Rodgers stated this work would be done by city crews. The cost for this project would be $8,549. He
stated if this was done by external contractors the cost could be up to $25,000.

Dyral Thomas asked what the square footage is on the property. Mr. Rodgers stated approximately 6,900
square feet are existing, with 5,000 more to be added.

Motion to use LEDC funds to enhance the properov ot 213 E. MLK Industrial Bivd by placing structural select
material pad on the north side of the building requiring renial of equipment:trucks and purchase of sefect fill

metterials «if of which would not exceed $8.549.

Motion by Frunk Estrada Second by: Dvrad Thomas Fote: 6 of 6

PUBLIC HEARING
Open Public Hearing ai: 6:12 PM

A. After proposed project presentation by staff, invite public to provide comments regarding the proposed
development by Hill Country Food Works LLC with a new scope that includes an initial estimated
investment of §$1.275 million and the employment of a minimum of 20 FTE employees with a minimum
annual wage of $30,250 to be maintained over the three (3) year agreement period with reimbursable
incentives worth up to $186,000.

Mr. Islas usked if theve was anyone present who would like fo speak in opposition of the proposed project and
incentives? There wus none.

Mr. Rodgers asked Mr. Cathey if he would like to provide information regarding the new project. Mr. Cathey
stated that the current 6,900 square foot building will be remodeled. 3,000 square feet will be the production
area. Another 1,000 square feet is going to be the packaging area. The upstairs will continue to be office space.
The 5,000 square feet to be added will have loading docks, pallet racks and bathrooms. 1,000 square feet will
be used for cold storage.

Mr. Cathey stated they would be bringing in 10-12 employees with them. They are expecting to hire additional
employees.

Mr. Alexander asked if there was a timeline in place of when they expect to move in. Mr. Cathey stated that
the plan for move in would be sometime in late June.

Mr. Islas asked if there was anvone present who would fike to speak in favor of the proposed project and
incentives? FThere was nowne.

LOCKHART ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (LEDC)
MINUTES
Monday, March 13, 2017 - 6:00 P.M.
CITY HALL UPSTAIRS MEETING AREA
308 WEST SAN ANTONIO STREET

Page 2 of 4 2,[0



DRAFT

B. CLOSE PUBLIC HEARING

Close Public Heering ar: 6:15 PAM

4. DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION
A. Discussion and/or action to consider Resolution 2017-04 approving the revised the Hill Country
Foodworks LLC
project and terms as an Economic Development 4B project and to recommend approval to the Lockhart
City Councii.

Mr. Rodgers stated the main item to review is the incentives. He stated that the incentives were based on the
company maintaining 20 full time employees with an average salary of $30,250. This agreement would be
over a three-year period. Mr. Rodgers stated that LEDC will reimburse up to $2,600 per job and they must
maintain those 20 jobs over a three-year period. The total value of this part of the incentive is $52,000.

Mr. Rodgers also stated that Hill Country Foodworks would also be reimbursed up to $112,000 after proof is
provided that $1.12 million is spent on property improvements. This also must be completed in the 36-month
period.

Permits and Impact Fees are estimated at $12,000. $10,000 is the proposed cost for transformers. This would
make the total incentive package proposed for the project over a three-year period, a total $186,000. These
incentives are also contingent on the purchase of the property from the LEDC for $380,000.

Motiou to approve Resolution 201 7-04 as presented: Motion by, Morris Alexauder Second by: Bernie Rungel
Foie: 6 0f6

B. Discussion and/or action regarding discussion of the new Economic Impact Data Sheet for Hill Country
Food Works which has an enhanced scope.

The Impact Data Sheet was presented to the LEDC Board. Mr. Rodgers pointed out the total investment is
estimated to be $1.475 million, that included the purchase of the building.

Mr. Doran asked if the number of employees, as well as their salaries would be verified. Mr. Rodgers stated
that they are required to provide proof of compliance and could use a Payroll Register to verify jobs as an
example.

C. Discussion and/or action to consider the Economic Development Performance Agreement with Hill
Country Foodworks LLC by which the company agrees to purchase the building at 215 E MLK Jr
Industrial Blvd for $380,000, enlarge the structure by about 5,000 square feet, buy equipment, and make
other improvements totaling an estimated initial investment of $1.275 million, and to employ and
maintain a minimum of 20 FTE employees with an average annual wage of $30,250 for the three (3) year
agreement period with LEDC providing up to $186,000 in reimbursable incentives.

Motion to approve proposed Econoniic Development Performance Agreement as presented.

Motion: Ken Doran Second: Bernie Rangel Vote: 6 of 6

LOCKHART ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (LEDC)
MINUTES
Monday, March 13, 2017 - 6:00 P.M.
CITY HALL UPSTAIRS MEETING AREA
308 WEST SAN ANTONIO STREET

Page 3 of 4 17



DRAFT
5. DISCUSSION ONLY

A. Discussion after staff update regarding Benny Boyd Auto Group proposed project.

Mr. Rodgers stated that Benny Boyd Auto Group has a contract on the 20 acres south of Walmart along US-
183. They are planning on building an auto facility that will be approximately 20,000-30,000 square feet and
create up to 35 jobs. This will be brought before the LEDC Board for a possible 4B project in the near future
should the company decide to proceed.

B. Discussion regarding the Arete Emergency Health Care Project.

Mr. Rodgers reported that this project has been revised. He stated that they have hired an architect/property
planner to create a site plan for the 16-acre tract. They are currently trying to determine where they will put the
initial 2-acre, 8,000-10,000-square foot building on this !6-acre site. Mr. Rodgers stated this project will go
before the LEDC Board as an amended project.

C. Discussion after update regarding other Economic Development Activity.

M. Islas asked for an update on Schlotsky’s. Mr. Tobias stated they are currently working with the Texas State
Small Business Development Center (SBDC) to complete a financial package and are about 60% completed.

Mr. Tobias shared some brief background on leads from the Governor’s Office and how the staff was
collaborating with the Austin Chamber and the GSMP, our regional partners. He noted that he would provide
a monthly recap in the future.

He also noted that he was collaborating with the Texas State SBDC on a number of small projects requiring
technical assistance. This free service is available to most new and existing businesses and create benchmarks
for growth.

Mr. Tobias also referenced the 2013 Sustainable Places Project and the framework provided for the potential
redevelopment of the historic district. He noted that the study highlighted several projects, as well as a
potential funding mechanism to consider. The LEDC and City Council will be jointly discussing this funding
mechanism in the near future.

6. REPORTS/DISCUSSION
A. Presentation related to Texas Capital Fund grant program was made by Mr. Rudy Ruiz of the Community
Development Management Corporation, a Lockhart-based grant consultant.

Mr. Ruiz briefly outlined the pros and cons of this state grant program and its potential application in Lockhart.
He also shared his experience with other federal and state grant programs that could be of value to the LEDC.

7. ADJOURN

Motion to Adiourn

Moiion: Ken Doran Secoud. Bernie Rangel Vote: 6 0f 6

Minutes approved this the day of , 201

Fermin T. Islas, Chairman

Vance Rodgers, President, LEDC

LOCKHART ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (LEDC)
MINUTES
Monday, March 13, 2017 - 6:00 P.M.
CITY BALL UPSTAIRS MEETING AREA
308 WEST SAN ANTONIO STREET

Page 4 of 4 ’]/g



Economic impact Data Sheet

City of Lockhart

- .The information requested on this form will be used by the City of Lockhart to prepare an economic impact analysis of your firm or project.
Znter data in the fillable cells below. You may also enter additional information or notes in other areas of this worksheet, to the right or
insert rows to enter other data. Some standard defauits are entered in the data sheet already. You may change these defaulis as
appropriate. Please enter information in the fillable cells below and e-mail this completed survey form to:

vrodgers@lockhart-tx.org Please call 512-398-3461 if you have any questions.
City of Lockhart

308 W. San Antonio St.
Lockhart, TX 78644

About the Firm

Name of the firm: | Hil Country Foodworks, LLG ]

Current Address:  |337 Millennium Dr. Unit 9A
Neiderwald, TX 78640

Phone Number:  |s12-668-4796 ] Fax Number: [NA ]
Person completing this form: | Kyle Green 1

Name of project:  [215E Mk I
(Example: ABC Corporation or Project Plastic)
Select each taxing district in which the firm or project is or will be located:

City [City of Lockhart i
County ICaldwell County i
School District {Lockhart ISD l
Road District | ]
Is or will the firm be located in the city limits? v . Yes
is or will the firm be located at the airport? I Yes

Description of the firm's plans to startup, expand or relocate to the community:

(Enter any narrative below to describe the fimn and its plans to slarlup, expand or locate in the community. This description will
be shown in the report.)

We plan to purchase the existing building at 215 E MLK Industriat Bivd and add a new 5,000 sq ft
warehouse.
The firm's primary North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) {3114 ]

Example: 221119. A six-digit NAICS code should be entered for the program to comectly calculate indirect and induce benefits from the firm's
operations. If the NAICS is unknown enter 0 as a default NAICS allowing the program to use default indirect eamings and employment muitipliers.

Page 1 of 6 “}q






Estimated taxable inventories, at the end of each year:
(Enter an amount in Year 1 and the percent of annual increase or enter appropriate
amounts for each year.)

Total
Year Inventories
1 75000
Percent of annual 2
increase after Year 1; 3
s
5
6
7
8
9
10
The firm's annual utilities:
(Enter an amount in Year 1 and the percent of annual increase or enter appropriate amounts for each
year.)
Percent of annual increase after Year 1: [::]
Year Water Wastewater  Solid Waste  Electricity Natural Gas Cable Telephone
1 | 2500 2500 1000 16000 3000 900 1800
2 27—50 2750 1250 17000 3250 900 1800
3 13000 3000 1500 18000 3500 900 1800
4 132580 3250 1750 19000 3750 900 1800
5 [3500 3500 2000 20000 4000 900 1800
6 3500 3500 2000 20000 4000 900 1800
7 13500 3500 2000 20000 4000 900 1800
8 3500 3500 2000 20000 4000 800 1800
9 13500 3500 2000 20000 4000 900 1800
10 | 3500 3500 2000 20000 4000 900 1800
Total | 32500 1 32500 117500 | 190000 [ 37500 | 9000 I 18000

Number of tetephone lines at the firm

Percent of the firm's electricity and natural gas usage

for manufacturing or processing operations

Year
1

O L N A WN

10
Total

L ]

The firm's estimated taxable purchases of materials, supplies and services in the community and the

firm's estimated taxable sales that will be subject to sales tax in the city:

(Enter an amount in Year 1 and the percent of annual increase or enter appropriate amounts for each year.)

The Firm's
Taxable

Purchases

The Firm's
Taxable Sales

25000

25000

25000

25000

25000

25000

[ 25000

25000

25000

25000

25000

IO |Jolojole|lolojoke oo

Percent of annual increase after Year1: | 250000

Page 3 of 6

o




Number of new full-time jobs to be added in the city each year:
(Enter only the additional jobs added in the city each year.)

New employees

to be hired
Year each year
1* 20
2 5
* if the business is relocating from outside of the city, 3 5
the year 1 value should include jobs transferred to 4 5
the city in year 1 and new positions hired, if any. 5 5
6 5
Example: If a firm relocates to the city and brings 7 5
50 existing employees, then enter 50 in year 1, 8 5
If a firm is relocating to the city, bringing 50 9 5
employees and will hire 10 additional workers 10 5
in year 1, then enter 60 in year 1. Total 65
New employees moving to the city:
Number of new
ompioyees
moving to the
Year city
1 14
Percentage of total new 2 [¥]
workers maving to the city 3 0
4 0
5 0
6 0
7 0
8 Q
9 0
10 Q
Total 14
Average annual salaries of new employees in the first year:
Percent of expected annual salary increase after Year 1:
Percent of workers in new indirect and induced jobs that will move
to the city for the job: D
Estimated percentage of workers moving to the city that will have
new residential property built for them the first year that they
move to the city: CI
Household size of a typical new worker moving to the city:
Number of school children in a typical worker's household C‘
Percent of taxable shopping by a typical new worker that will

Page 4 of 6

N2






Witd Avyg

Wholesale The Firm's

Number of Price per Total Fuel
Year Gallons Gallon Costs
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
Total
Percent of annual increase after Year 1: | [% |

The firm's expected ground lease payments to the airport;

Number of square feet of land to be leased
Per square foot lease rate
Ground Lease
Year Payments
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
Total

Percent of annual increase after Year 4: [:l

The firm's expected airport infrastructure and maintenance fee to be paid to the airport:

Airport
Infrastructure &
Maintenance
Year Fee
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
Total

Percent of annual increase after Year 1: :I

End of Project Data Entry

Page 6 of 6









DRAFT
RECESS: Mayor White announced that the Council would recess for a break at 7:00 p.m.

REGULAR MEETING

ITEM 1. CALL TO ORDER.
Mayor Lew White called the regular meeting of the Lockhart City Council to order on this date at
7:30 p.m.

ITEM 2. INVOCATION, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.,
Invocation - Ministerial Alliance.
Pledge of Allegiance to the United States and Texas flags.

ITEM 3. CITIZENS/VISITORS COMMENTS.,
Mayor White requested citizens to address the Council. There were none.

ITEM 4. CONSENT AGENDA.
Mayor Pro-Tem Sanchez made a motion to approve consent agenda items 4A, 48, 4C, 4D, 4E, and 4F.
Councilmember Hilburn seconded. The motion passed by a vote of 7-0.

The following are the consent agenda items that were approved:

4A: Approve minutes of the City Council meeting of February 21, 2017.

4B: Approve 2016 Racial Profiling Report as presented by the Lockhart Police Department.

4C: Approve annual services agreement with Motorola, Inc., in the amount of $136,328.64 of which
$56,803.60 is for the 215 City of Lockhart radios to cover maintenance, repairs, and replacement of
the 700/800 mhz radio infrastructure system which supports radio communications for the City of
Lockhart, Concessions Group, Caldwell County, City of Luling, and the City of Martindale from
October 1, 2017 through September 30, 2018 with each entity paying its share of the costs based on
the number of radios using the system according to the existing interlocal agreement, and appointing
the Mayor to sign the contract agreement.

4D: Approve a draft Scope of Work for a Parks Master Plan and to advertise Request for Proposals (RFP)
with any changes suggested by Council.

4E: Approve City Manager’s recommended use of Unrestricted General Fund Balance in the amount of
$265,000 to purchase three (3) Police Patrol cars ($132,000), one (1) Criminal Investigation Division
(CID) vehicle ($22,000), one (1) pickup for Streets ($20,000), one (1) pickup ($23,000), two (2)
commercial mowers ($18,000) for Parks and remodeling offices/meeting areas at City Hall ($50,000).

4F: Approve recommendation by City Manager that an old commercial mowing unit be donated to the
Lockhart Youth Soccer Association (LYSA) in the interest of a public purpose since it will be used
solely by LYSA to maintain soccer fields at the city owned Cpl. Jason K. LaFleur Sports Complex.

ITEM 5-A. DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION REGARDING APPOINTMENTS TO VARIOUS
BOARDS, COMMISSIONS OR COMMITTEES.
Mayor White requested appointments to various boards, commissions or committees.

3of7

City Council — March 7, 2017 %7



DRAFT

Councilmember Westmoreland made a motion to_reappoint board members as listed below. Mayor Pro-

Tem Sanchez seconded. The motion passed by a vote of 7-0.

Airport Board

Board of Adjustment
Construction Board { Alternate)
Eco Dev. Revolving Loan

Eco Dev. Corp. ¥ Cent Sales Tax
Historical Preservation

Library Board

Parks and Recreation

Planning & Zoning

Jayson “Tex” Cordova
Severo Castillo

Gary Shafer

Edward Strayer

Frank Estrada
Terrance Gahan
Rebecca Lockhart
Dennis Placke
Christina Black

Councilmember Hilburn made a motion to reappoint board members as listed below. Mayor Pro-Tem

Sanchez seconded. The motion passed by a vote of 7-0.

Airport Board

Board of Adjustment
Board of Adjustment
Board of Adjustment
Construction Board

Eco Dev. Revelving Loan
Eco Dev. Corp. ¥z Cent Sales Tax
Electric Board

Historical Preservation
Library Board

Parks and Recreation
Planning & Zoning

Ray Chandler

Anne Clark, Vice-Chair
Nic [rwin (Alternate)
Kirk Smith (Alternate)
Jerry West, Vice-Chair
Lew White, Chair

Ken Doran

Thomas Stephens
Ronda Reagan

Jean Clark Fox, Chair
William Burnett

Philip McBride, Chair

Councilmember Michelson made a motion to reappoint board members as listed below. Mayor Pro-Tem

Sanchez seconded. The motion passed by a vote of 7-0.

Airport Board

Board of Adjustment
Construction Board

Ecc Dev. Revolving Loan

Eco Dev. Corp. Y2 Cent Sales Tax
Electric Board

Historical Preservation
Library Board

Parks and Recreation
Planning & Zoning

4 of 7

City Council — March 7, 2017

Mark Brown, Vice-Chair
Wayne Reeder

Rick Winnett

Frank Coggins

Morris Alexander

James Paul Denny, Vice-
Chair

Kathy McCormick
Denaly Brice

Russell Wheeler

Mary Beth Nickel



DRAFT
Mavyor Pro-Tem Sanchez made a motion to reappoint board members as listed below. Councilmember
Mendoza seconded. The motion passed by a vote of 7-0.

Airport Board Andrew Reyes
Board of Adjustment Laura Cline, Chair
Construction Board Paul Martinez
Eco Dev. Revolving Loan Irene Yanez
Eco Dev. Corp. % Cent Sales Tax Bernie Rangel
Historical Preservation Juan Alvarez, JIr.
Library Board Jodi King
Parks and Recreation Chris Schexnayder
Planning & Zoning Philip Ruiz, Vice-Chair

Councilmember Mendoza made a motion to reappoint board members as listed below. Mayor Pro-Tem
Sanchez seconded. The motion passed by a vote of 7-0.

Airport Board Larry Burrier
Board of Adjustment Lori Rangel
Construction Board Mike Votee
Eco Dev. Revolving Loan Ryan Lozano
Eco Dev. Corp. ¥ Cent Sales Tax  Dyral Thomas
Electric Board Thomas Herrera
Historical Preservation Victor Corpus
Library Board Shirley Williams
Parks and Recreation Linda Thompson-Bennett
Planning & Zoning Marcos Villalobos

Councilmember Castillo made a motion to reappoint board members as listed below. Mayor Pro-Tem
Sanchez seconded. The motion passed by a vote of 7-0.

Airport Board Reed Coats
Board of Adjustment Juan Juarez
Construction Board Israel Zapien
Eco Dev. Revolving Loan Rudy Ruiz
Eco Dev. Corp. 2 Cent Sales Tax  Fermin Islas, Chair
Electric Board James Briceno
Historical Preservation Ron Faulstich
Library Board Donnie Wilson
Parks and Recreation James Torres
Planning & Zoning Manuel Oliva

S50f7

City Couneil — March 7, 2017 % Q






DRAFT

Councilmember Hilburn expressed prayers, condolences and get well wishes to all involved in the tragic
bus accident.

Councilmember Castillo expressed prayers to all involved in the tragic bus accident. He congratulated the
Lady Lion powerlifting team for advancing to compete at the State level. He wished everyone good luck
in all sporting events and thanked Mr. Rodgers and the Water Department for the continued work on
infrastructure improvements in District 2. He wished everyone a safe spring break.

Councilmember Michelson expressed prayers to the victims involved in the tragic bus accident. He
congratulated the 4H Livestock show for the successful fundraising event. He wished Brad Westmoreland
a Happy Birthday this Saturday.

Mayor White expressed condolences and get well wishes to the victims in the bus accident. He announced
several activities in March and April.

ITEM 8. ADJOURNMENT.
Mayor Pro-Tem Sanchez made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Councilmember Mendoza seconded. The
motion passed by a vote of 7-0. The meeting was adjourned at 7:55 p.m.

PASSED and APPROVED this the 21* day of March 2017.

CITY OF LOCKHART

Lew White, Mayor
ATTEST:

Connie Constancio, TRMC
City Secretary

7of7
City Council — March 7, 2017






STATE OF TEXAS

)
) CITY OF LOCKHART
COUNTY OF CALDWELL )

JASON K. LAFLEUR FIELD COMPLEX USE AGREEMENT

This Agreement is made between the City of Lockhart, Texas, a municipal corporation
organized under the laws of the State of Texas, having its principal office at 308 W. San
Antonio Street, Lockhart, Texas 78644, referred to as “the City,” and the Lockhart
Youth Soccer Association, a non-profit entity having its principal office at 925 W Live
Oak Street, Lockhart, Texas 78644, referred to as “I.YSA.”

The City recognizes that the LYSA Youth Field Programs (the “Programs™), consisting
of supervised, competitive athletic and recreational events for children, adolescents, and
teenagers, non-adult, serve a public purpose by providing for the recreational needs of
Youth in the City.

The LYSA, a 38 year old volunteer organization dedicated to youth soccer recreation,
and the City have worked together to provide these programs since 2005 at the Jason K.
Lafleur Field Complex (“the Complex™), and have helped more than 350 youths each
year since that time. The LYSA has made significant improvements to the Complex
including field irrigation, storage facility, goals, and other amenities, and the LYSA
continues to use its funds to improve the Complex.

Based on the relationship of the parties and the public purpose served thereby, the City
and the LYSA enter into this Use Agreement under the following conditions:

I. Recitals

1. The City is the owner of the Complex, located at 1507 Maple Street, Lockhart, Texas
and consisting of approximately 28 acres with concession facilities, restroom facilities,
and other improvements. The Complex is used as multi-purpose fields and soccer fields
for team games, practicing, and tournaments. Any reference to the Complex in this
agreement includes any one or all fields, structures, and related areas and improvements
thereon.

2. The LYSA is experienced in the maintenance and repairs of the Complex and has

regular use of the Complex. The LYSA primarily serves youths in the City of Lockhart
Texas.

4

3. The City desires to enter into an agreement with the LYSA for the exclusive
operation and general maintenance of the Complex, and the LYSA desires to have such
exclusive operation and general maintenance on the terms and conditions set forth in
this agreement.

Lockhart\Contracts\L YSA Mgmt Agreement 1 Draft



Therefore, in consideration of the mutual covenants set out herein, the City and the
LYSA agree as follows:

II. Term

The term of this agreement is five (5) years from the date of its execution by the parties.
This agreement may be extended for another five (5) year term upon written request by
the LYSA, and approval of the Lockhart City Council. Any renewal request by LYSA
must be in writing and be received by the City at least 30 days prior to the end of the
initial term. This agreement applies to the full twelve months of cach year of the term,
rather than for the soccer season only, except as otherwise provided herein.

III. Use

The Complex will be used for conducting Youth Field Programs by the 1.YSA, and will
be used by other organizations and individuals as described herein.

Youth Field Programs and other organized uses conducted at the Complex shall be
sponsored by non-profit organizations only, and shall be open to all persons, regardless
of race, color, religion, national origin, or ability and any other federally protected
groups.

IV. Improvements and Alterations to the Field Complex

Upon assuming the operation and maintenance of the Complex, the LYSA shall submit
in writing to the City any recommended improvements and alterations to the Complex,
and any other matters that will enhance its efficient use or management. All plans and
specifications for improvements and alterations must be approved in writing by the City.
Improvements and alterations must conform to the current standards as specified by the
Texas Parks and Wildlife Department and other state, local and federal law, including
City ordinances. After conferring with the City and obtaining approval to make
improvements and alterations, the 'YSA will undertake completion of the
improvements and alterations at the sole expense of the LYSA, unless otherwise agreed
upon by the City and the LYSA in writing. Utilities, including electrical wiring, must
be placed by qualified/licensed individuals underground as required by the Texas Parks
and Wildlife Department. Any improvements or alterations to the Complex, including
the fields, cannot be done without written permission of the City Parks Manager and/or
Public Works Director. Such improvements or alterations must be completed by 1.YSA
in a timely manner.

Advertising signs at the Field Complex must be approved in writing by the LYSA and

the City, and are permitted only on fences or as temporary attachments to the concession
stand, causing no damage, and only during the seasonal soccer play.

LockhartiContracts\L.YSA Mgmt Agreement 2 Draft



V. Use of the Field Complex by Other Organizations or Individuals

Other certified non-profit organizations/groups (the “Organization(s)””) may request the
use of the Complex and will be given reasonable access to the fields where no conflicts
exist with use of the Complex by the LYSA or other scheduled events. Such requests are
to be made in writing to the LYSA Board for approval, and will be provided by the
LYSA to the City’s Parks Manager and/or Public Works Director. Organizations shall
provide to the LYSA adequate general liability insurance coverage naming LYSA and
the City of Lockhart as additional insureds, and provide assurances of safe use of the
Complex to LYSA and the City.

Each certified non-profit Organization shall agree to return the Complex to the condition
that it was in prior to the Organization’s use of it, and to repair any damage done to the
Complex before or immediately upon completion of the games/tournaments.

Organizations shall pay to the LYSA the following fees for the use of the Complex:
-- $100.00 per month per field, single team practice;
-- $30.00 per team per tournament;

-- $100.00 per field for a cleaning and repair deposit, to be applied against any costs
incurred by the LYSA or the City for cleaning and repairing the Complex after use by
the certified non-profit Organization, including but not limited to replacing field

markers, field paint, and dirt. LYSA may choose to refund the deposit if the

Organization performs such tasks to LYSA’s satisfaction; and

-~ $60.00 per month, per field, to the City as a lighting fee for the use of the lights at the
Complex, where such use shall occur at or after sundown. Proof of payment must be
provided to LYSA by the certified non-profit Organization.

LYSA and the City recognize that the complex is public property that can be used by
families, individuals and groups for general recreation when there is no conflict with the
City, LYSA, or other scheduled events or uses as provided herein.

The City’s Parks and Recreation Department may use the Complex at no charge when
the Complex is not scheduled for league play or maintenance, and after receiving
clearance from the LYSA. Use of the Complex by a school district shall require an
Interlocal Agreement among the City, the LYSA, and the school district.

The Complex fields will not be used as practice fields except as approved in writing by

the LYSA Board or designated President or Vice-President during the LYSA soccer
season. LY SA will not unreasonably deny use of the fields.

Lockhart\Contracts\L YSA Mgmt Apgreement 3 Draft



VI. City Maintenance, Repair, and Services at the Complex

The City shall provide the following maintenance, repairs and services at the Complex:
1. Maintain Complex and parking area lighting. Requests for light bulb replacement or
maintenance of lighting equipment must be made via email to the City Parks and
Recreation Department. A total of two light bulbs must be burned out prior to any
request. Please allow time for this process to take place. .

2. Mow and weed-eat common areas (areas outside playing surfaces) identified in
Attachment A, and treat the fields and common areas for fire ants, bees, and other
insects once at the beginning of each seasonal play. Subsequent treatments during the
season shall be the responsibility of the LYSA and in compliance with pest control laws.

3. Provide water, electricity and wastewater utilities, subject to reimbursement as
provided in this agreement. Any excessive use will be addressed with LYSA. It is the
responsibility of LYSA to ensure that utilities are used in a responsible manner.

4. Where the City must make repairs for damages to the Complex as a result of
negligence or misuse by the LYSA or Organizations, the LYSA shall reimburse the City
for the costs of such repairs within a reasonable period of time.

5. Respond within 14 days to requests for maintenance and repairs to the Complex as
provided herein. If the City cannot make repairs or perform maintenance within this
time frame, City will notify LYSA. If a health or safety problem arises at the Complex,
LYSA will protect the public from the problem as best it can, shall halt all or a part of
the use of the Complex as deemed necessary by LYSA, and must immediately report it
to the City. Requests for maintenance and repairs must be made by email to the Parks
Manager of the Lockhart Parks and Recreation Department.

VII. LYSA Maintenance, Repairs, and Services at the Complex

LYSA shall provide all maintenance, repairs and other services for the Complex not
provided by the City in this agreement, including but not limited to:

1. Marking and lining the fields as needed.

2. Keeping the fields and common areas, including parking lots, free of litter during use
by the LYSA, Organizations and/or individuals, and shall empty trash receptacles.

3. Clean the Complex restrooms, concession stand, and other facilities during use by
the LYSA, certified non-profit Organizations, and/or individuals.

4. Control lights and other utility usage at the Complex. Where such utilitics are

misused, the City may immediately stop providing such utilities and/or require the
misusing organization or individuals to pay for additional usage;

Lockhart\Contracis\LYSA Mgmt Agreement 4 Dralt



5. Abide by the City’s Parks and Recreation Department Water Conservation Plan;

6. Conduct background checks on all LYSA coaches and volunteers and keep such
records for at least 3 years.

7. Pay to the City $50.00 per field per year as a general use fee.

8. Perform normal maintenance and provide materials (cleaning, painting, tightening,
straightening, alignments, plumbing stoppages, interior light bulbs, toilet paper, paper
towels, etc.) for the Complex concession building, bleachers, posts, restrooms,
scoreboards, and concession appliances.

9. Perform all mowing, weed-eating, and dirt work on the fields to provide neat and
safe fields. The City will provide sand and/or loam for the fields as needed, upon
request of LYSA and approval of the City.

10. Announce before each game that alcohol is not allowed at the Complex and that
violators will be reported to the Lockhart Police Department.

L1. Ensure that coaches, players, spectators and others conduct themselves in an
appropriate manner for a family recreational setting, and if necessary call the Lockhart
Police Department to stop unruly behavior.

12. Use its best efforts to insure that the Complex is maintained in an attractive
condition and in a good state of repair, including off-season.

13. In addition to the foregoing, perform all services that are reasonable and necessary
for the operation and maintenance of the Complex during the term of this agreement,
unless otherwise directed by the City.

VIIL. Sales of Goods at the Complex

Only LYSA and Organizations may sell goods at the Complex, and only during games
or tournaments. Goods shall consist of food, non-alcoholic beverages, and items related
to sport being played by LYSA or the Organization. The income from such sales shall
be the property of the LYSA or Organization. The LYSA retains the right to approve or
disapprove all concession stand usage at the Complex. All certified non-profit
Organizations that wish to use a concession stand or sell goods at the Complex must
receive written approval by the LYSA and the City, and must conform to all city,
county, and state food, health, and other applicable regulations, ordinances and statutes.

IX. Annual Reporting Requirements

The LYSA shall provide the following information to the City on an annual basis:

Lockhari\Contracts\LYSA Mgmt Agreement 5 Draft \/{



1. On December 1 of each year, a completed set of forms promulgated by the City’s
Parks and Recreation Department which provide information regarding the use of the
Complex by LYLSA and Organizations.

2. A report providing the following information:

a) A list of at least five (5) officers and board members of the LYSA, with addresses
and phone numbers, who shall be responsible for the LYSA financing of the Youth
Field Programs;

b) Programs information as determined by the City;
¢) Complex information as determined by the City;
d) A financial statement of the LYSA;

¢) Other information regarding LYSA and/or the Complex and its use as determined by
the City;

f) A copy of the LYSA’s current insurance policy, naming the City of Lockhart, Texas
as additional insured; and

g) A copy of the official documents proving the LYSA’s current non-profit status,

X. Insurance

During the use of the Complex by the LYSA and Organizations, beginning with
registration of players and through the entire season of play, the LYSA must carry
liability and property damage insurance, naming the City of Lockhart, Texas as an
additional insured. The insurance coverage must insure against any and all injuries
(including death) and damages arising in any way from the use or operations of the
Complex. The amounts of coverage must be $25,000 in property damage, and $100,000
per person/$300,000 per occurrence for personal injury and public liability. The primary
insured shall be the LYSA, and an insurance policy naming as primary insured any other
person or organization will not meet the requirements of this section. The LYSA shall
bear the cost of such insurance coverage. The City will cooperate with the LYSA and
any insurer in the making and delivery of all reports, notices, and other items required in
connection with the insurance policy.

XI. Termination

Either party may terminate this agreement with 90 days’ written notice to the other
party.

If the LYSA materially breaches any of the terms of this agreement, including but not
limited to the failure to maintain the Complex or provide needed repairs as described

Lockhart\Contracts\LYSA Mgmt Agreement 6 Draft



herein, or the failure to submit the yearly set of completed forms to the Parks and
Recreation Department on December 1 of each year, then the City will give the LYSA
written notice of the breach. If the LYSA fails to remedy the breach within thirty (30)
days afier receiving such notice in writing, the City may terminate this agreement.

LSYA’s failure to obtain and maintain insurance as provided in this agreement shall be a
material breach of this agreement, and is ground for immediate termination of this
agreement by the City.

The cessation of Youth Field Programs by the L.YSA, or the termination of the LYSA as
an active non-profit organization, will result in the immediate termination of this
Agreement.

Upon the termination of this agreement or any extension of it, LYSA will leave the
Complex in good condition and properly maintained. Within 3 working days of the
termination, LYSA will remove all items belonging to .YSA and/or any Organization
unless otherwise agreed to by the City.

XIL. No Property Interest Created

Nothing contained in this agreement is to be deemed to create or is to be construed as
creating in the LYSA or any other person or entity any property interest in or to the
Complex.

XIIL. Licensing of the LYSA

The LYSA must at all titnes during the term of this agreement maintain such licenses
and permits as are required for any of the various services to be performed by the LYSA
on behalf of the City.

XIV. Independent Contractor

In following their respective obligations under this Agreement, the parties are and shall
act at all times as independent contractors and at no time shall either party make any
commitments or incur any charges or expenses for or in the name of the other party.

XYV. Notice

Except as otherwise provided herein, all notices, requests, demands, or other
communications under this agreement must be in writing, and will be deemed to have
been duly given if delivered in person, or within three (3) days after deposited in the
United States mail, postage prepaid, to the City at 308 W. San Antonio Street, Lockhart,
Texas 78644, or to the LYSA at 925 W Live Oak Street, Lockhart, Texas 78644.
Either party to this agreement may change the address at which it receives written
notices by so notifying the other party in writing.

Lockhart\Contracts\L. YSA Mgmt Agreement 7 Draft l‘#@






Notary Signature

Lockhart Youth Soccer Association,
A Texas Non-Profit Entity

By:

Amy Limas, President
Date:

NOTARY:
Signed before me on this the day of , 2017

Notary Signature

Lockhart\Contracts\L YSA Mgmt Agreement 9 Draft 5 /
























information, ownership of proprietary information and similar items shall ali survive
termination of any nature.

CONFIDENTTAL INFORMATION. Any information from either party which is
designated by stamp, label or similer method, by state or federal law, or by general
deseription provided by Client to DCC as confidential or proprietary shall be treated as
auch by the other party. Such treatment shall includle the recipiont insuring that such
doouinents are not divulged to third parties without prior written consent by the issuing
party, or-as otherwise required by law. DCC ackniowledges that Client is a Texas
governmental-entity and subject to the Texas Public Information Act. Otherwise, each
party's obligation-under this Article shall be desmed accomplished so long as it provides
the same safeguards and procedures that it customarily provides its own confidential and
proprietary information,

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. TO THE EXTENT ALLOWED BY LAW, DCC, ITS
OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, EMPLOYEES AND AGENTS WILL NOT BE LIABLE TO
CLIENT OR ANY OTHER PARTY FOR ANY SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, JNDIRECT,
GENERAL OR CONSEQUENT[AL DAMAGES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED
TO, DAMAGES OR COSTS INCURRED AS A RESULT OF LOSS OF TIME, LOSS
OF SAVINGS, LOSS OF PROPERTY, LOSS OF DATA OR LOSS OF PROFITS,
WHICH MAY ARISE N CONNECTION WITH THE SERVICES, REGARDLESS OF
WHETHER DCC HRAS BEEN APPRISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OR LIKELIHOOD
OF SUCH DAMAGES OCCURRING OR WHETHER CLAIMS ARE BASED OR
REMEDIES ARE SOUGHT IN CONTRACT, NEGLIGENCE, STRICT LIABILITY,
TORT, PRODUCTS LIABILITY OR OTHER WISE.

IN'NO EVENT WILL DCC'S LIABILITY FOR ANY DAMAGES TO CLIENT OR
ANY OTHER PARTY EVER EXCEED THE FEES PAID BY CLIENT FOR THE
SBRVICES, REGARDLESS OF THE FORM OF ACTION. WHETHER IN
CONTRACT, NEGLIGENCE, STRICT LIABILITY, TORT, PRODUCTS LIABILITY
OR OTHERWISE.

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. In following their respective obligations under this
Agreement, the parties act and shall act at all times as indepondent contractors and at no
time shall either party make any commitments or incur any charges or expenses for or in
the name of the other party.

NON-SOLICITATION OF EMPLOYEES. DCC and CLIENT agree not to solicit for
employment the employees of the other party, without the prior written consent of the
other party, for a period of twelve (12) months following termination of this Agreement.

NON-ASSIGNMENT. Noither parly shatl assign this Agreement or any of its

rospective rights or obligations under this Agreement without the prior written congent of
the other perty. No such-approval of assignment shall relieve or release the assigning
party from any of its obligations under this Agreement to the non-assigning party.

WAIVER AND SEVERABILITY. Failute by ¢ither party to enforce at any time any of
the provns:ons of this Agreement shall in no way be construed to be a waiver of such
provision nor in any way affect the validity of this Agreement or any right thereof or the
right of the other party thereafler to enforce each and every provision. The provisions of
this Agreement are declared to be severable and any provision of this Agreemont that is
determined to bo void or unenforceable by e court of competent jurisdiction shall not
affect the enforceability of the remaining provisions herein, and the remaining provisions

©Dot Command Cetter Inc, Professional Servicos Agreememnt Page 2


















It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Ordinance was
passed was open to the public, and that public notice of the time, place and purpose of said
meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Texas Government Code, Chapter
551.

C. EFFECTIVE DATE
This ordinance shall become effective from and after its passage.
D. COPY OF ORDINANCE TO TGS

Within 10 days after passage, a copy of this Ordinance shall be sent Stephanie Houle, Texas
Gas Service Company, Barton Skyway IV, 1301 S. Mopac, Suite 400, Austin, Texas 78746.

PASSED AND APPROVED this day of 2017, by a vote of
(ayes) to (nays) to (abstentions) of the City Council of the City of
Lockhart, Texas.

CITY OF LOCKHART

Lew White, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:
Connie Constancio, TRMC Peter Gruning
City Secretary City Attorney

07












ORDINANCE 2017-06

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LOCKHART,
TEXAS, AMENDING PORTIONS OF CHAPTER 58, ARTICLE IIL.-WATER,
SEWER, ELECTRIC EXTENSIONS, DIVISION 1. GENERALLY, SECTIONS
58-171 THROUGH 58-174 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES PROVIDING FOR
A UTILITY MAIN EXTENSION APPLICATION AND A PRO-RATA
REIMBURSEMENT APPLICATION AND PROCESS

WHEREAS, the Lockhart City Council upon recommendation of City staff considered

the need to clarify sections of the current referenced ordinance regarding utility main
extensions; and

WHEREAS, the Lockhart City Council in consideration of the property owners,
developers, and staff sees the need to provide for an official utility extension application
and pro-rata reimbursement application and process; and

WHEREAS, the Lockhart City Council considers the recommended changes to help

promote more housing and business development which are necessary for improved
economic development;

THEREFORE, be ordained by the City Council of Lockhart, Texas, that CHAPTER 58,
ARTICLE III. - WATER, SEWER, ELECTRIC EXTENSIONS®DIVISION 1. —
GENERALLY, Sec. 58-171 through 58-174 of the Code of Ordinances are hereby
amended to read as follows:

I. Sec. 58-171. - Scope.

Water and Sewer Main Extensions:

Water and sewer extensions 100 feet in length or less up to the private property line, or
with a cost to the city of $450.00 or less, may be made without cost to the customer.
This section shall not be construed to exclude payment of the standard tapping charges,
service or connection fees, or deposits or other charges which may be required by the
city. The city shall not extend, nor pay for extensions of water/sewer services on private
property unless in a dedicated public easement or right of way as deemed necessary by
the city. The owner/developer shall make application for any extension of a water
and/or wastewater main.

Electric Primary Line Extensions:

For upgrades to existing electric services, installation of services or facilities beyond
the standard service or facilities normally provided, and/or extensions of service to
unserved locations, customers, developments, subdivisions, or other application for
electric service both overhead and underground as more fully described beginning with
section 56-175.

]



IL.  Sec. 58-172. - Deposit of cost; agreement; reimbursement

(a)
For water, sewer and electric extensions, the property owner/developer or attorney
in fact shall deposit with the city in advance an amount of money sufficient to
cover the cost of all engineering/design/surveying, labor, material and associated
costs of the desired extension. Such costs will be determined by the city or
prepared by the property owner/developer for review and approval by the city.
Any extension may be performed by the owner/developer if granted permission by
the city and provided that the construction plans are approved by the city and also
inspected. An application for extension of a city owned main must be completed.

(b)
At the time of the deposit as referenced in (a) above, the property owner/developer
or attorney in fact and the city shall execute a "Pro-rata Reimbursement
Agreement” (agreement) adopted by the City Council which shall cover such
subjects as ownership of the line and the method of pro-rata reimbursement if any.
Such agreements shall not exceed five years from the date of acceptance of the
extension(s) by the City. See also subsections = .-: < (b) and > - - (a) of this
Code. The city shall have the right to collect pro-rata or proportionate shares of the
costs of the main extension as determined in the agreement from all property
owners /developers that benefit from any main extension when they attach to or
tap on to the main. Disbursement to the original owner/developer shall be in

accordance to the provisions in the agreement as may be amended from time to
time.

(c)
Proof of property ownership by the owner/developer shall be submitted by the title
holder or attorney in fact in the form of a warranty deed, contract for deed, or

power of attorney at the time of application for service, or an extension petition
under subsection ~ - “(e).

III. Sec. 58-173. - Location, grade of pipe.

The location and size of pipe to be used in any water and sewer extension, as well as
the grade thereof, shall be approved by the city.

IV. Sec. 58-174. - Construction.

The city reserves the right to do and perform all the work and construction required in
water and sewer extensions. However, the city may allow each owner/developer to have
such work and construction performed under private contract. In such event, the city
reserves the right to inspect such construction. All material used and work performed
shall be approved and in conformity with city standards and specifications.

(all other sections remain as previously adopted)

10



V. _Repealer: All other ordinances, section, or parts of ordinances heretofore adopted by the
City of Lockhart in conflict with the provisions set out above in this ordinance are herchy
repealed or amended as indicated.

VI._Publication: The City Secretary is dirccted to cause the caption of this ordinance to be
published in a newspaper of general circulation according to law.

VIL _Determination; It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this
ordinance was passed was open to the public as required by law.

VIIIL. Severability: If any provision, section, clause, sentence, or phrase of this ordinance is for
any reason held to be unconstitutional, void, invalid, or un-enforced, the validity of the
remainder of this ordinance or its application shall not be affected, it being the intent of the
City Council in adopting and of the Mayor in approving this ordinance that no portion,
provision, or regulation contained herein shall become inoperative or fail by way of reasons
of any unconstitutionality or invalidity or any other portion, provision or regulation.

IX. Effective Date: This ordinance shall become effective and be in full force upon passage.

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS, ON THIS THE DAY OF
,2017.

CITY OF LOCKHART

Lew White, Mayor

ATTEST:

Connie Constancio, TRMC
City Secretary















STATE OF TEXAS

§
§ CITY OF LOCKHART
COUNTY OF CALDWELL §

PRO-RATA REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT
FOR WATER OR SEWER EXTENSION

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into on , 20 , by and between the City of
Lockhart, Texas, a Texas municipal corporation (the City) and ,a Texas
for-profit corporation (the Developer).

The Developer proposes to construct a water or sewer main (the Main) connecting to an existing main
owned by the City to serve property owned by the Developer (the Development)., The name and location
of the Development are

In consideration for the Developer’s costs to extend the Main(s), the City desires to set forth the manner
in which the Developer may be reimbursed (a) for a portion of the construction costs for extending
Main(s); and (b) for third party connections to that portion of the Main that is totally outside the
Development for which service is proposed or lying along one or more sides of a tract of land other than
the Development for which this extension is made (the Offsite Portion).

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of all of the premises and other good and valuable
consideration, the parties agree as follows:

1. The Developer or the City will construct the Main at the Developer’s expense. The Developer may be
reimbursed by pro-rata cost share funds collected from third party property owners that benefit from
connections to the Main extension. Such funds will be collected by the City when taps are made to the
Main extension. Exhibit A, attached hereto, is a drawing showing the route of the proposed Main with
reference points relating to the approved engineering plans.

2. The City does not assume any obligations which may arise under any terms of an agreement
previously entered into or which may in the future be entered into by the Developer with a third party for
the construction of the Main.

3. The Main shall be installed in accordance with current City standards and specifications. The City
Engineer or his/her representative will determine whether the Main is constructed in accordance with
approved engineering plans and specifications, and upon completion the Main will become the property
of the City and an integral part of the City's system and subject to the maintenance, jurisdiction and
control of the City. If for any reason construction of the Main should begin but not be completed, that
portion having been constructed will become the property of the City and subject to the maintenance,
Jurisdiction and control of the City upon written acceptance by the City. The City shall not be liable for
any costs for the construction of the Main or any portion thereof.

%



4. The size of the Main will be¢ determined and approved by the City. The City may require the Main to
be oversized pursuant to Lockhart Code of Ordinances, Sec. 52-143, and may reimburse the Contractor
for the difference in construction cost of the oversized Main and the size needed by the Developer, which
cannot be less than 8” for water or wastewater mains.

5. The Developer may be reimbursed for the costs of the Offsite Portion, at the City’s discretion, based
on pro rata reimbursement of funds collected by the City from third parties for connecting to the Offsite
Portion. An example of such calculation is attached, for informational purposes only. Reimbursement
will be considered only for connections to the Offsite Portion that are made within five (5) years of the
completion of the Main and its acceptance by the City. Impact fees and tap fees are not included in
reimbursement calculations. Reimbursement will only be made to the Developer that originally paid for
the Main, less any portion paid by the City for oversizing. The City will make reasonable efforts to locate
and reimburse the original Developer with third party pro-rata funds collected for connections to the
Offsite Portion during the five year period after the Main is accepted by the City. However, it is the
original Developer’s responsibility to keep the City informed of its whereabouts. IF the original
Developer cannot be located by the City, the collected third party funds will be paid to the appropriate
City utility maintenance and operations fund.

6. Upon completion of the Offsite Portion by the Developer, the Developer will furnish the City with a
certified itemized list of quantities, materials and any related construction costs for the Offsite Portion.
Such itemized list, after audit and approval by the City, will determine the actual construction cost of the
Offsite Portion, which will be used to determine the actual pro-rata cost shares, less the Developer’s pro-
rata share, of third party owners when they make application to connect to the Off-site Portion. If the City
constructs the Main, the City’s actual costs will be used to calculate pro-rata cost shares, less the
Developer’s pro-rata share, of third party owners who connect to the Off-site Portion.

7. The Developer on behalf of itself, its contractors and its agents covenants and agrees to hold harmless
and indemnify the City from and against any and all claims for personal injury (including death) or
property damage which may arise from the Main construction operations performed under the terms of
this agreement; and the Developer also agrees and does hereby agree to indemnify and save the City
harmless from all claims growing out of the lawful demands of contractors, subcontractors, laborers,
workmen, mechanics, material, men and suppliers incurred in the performance of this agreement. The
Developer will furnish to the City satisfactory evidence of the discharge of such claims prior to
completion of the Main and its acceptance by the City.

8. This agreement will terminate {a} one year after its date of execution if construction of the Main has
not begun, (b) three years after the date of execution if construction of the Main has not been completed
and accepted by the City, or (c) five years after the Main is completed and accepted by the City. Upon
termination, no reimbursement funds will be paid to the Developer. However, Section 3 of this
agreement shall survive such termination.

777



AGREED TO and EXECUTED on

,20

Vance Rodgers, City Manager
City Of Lockhart, Texas

[Name & Position]
[Contractor Company Name}

7%



EXAMPLE OF REIMBURSEMENT CALCULATIONS FOR MAIN EXTENSION:

Main Project: 2000 linear feet to nearest sewer main or manhole from nearest point of development.

Project engineer, with city approval, determines an 8” main is required for the development.

-- City determines that a 12 main is desired for area including the development, and city engineer
determines the difference in costs between the 8” and 12” mains.

-- At its discretion, City may pay for all or a portion of the difference in construction costs between the
8” and 12” mains.

-- Upon connection to the Offsite Portion of the main extension, a property (including the development)
will be assessed a pro-rata share of the total construction costs of the Offsite Portion of the main, based
on the square footage of the property, or any portion of it, that can be served by the Offsite Portion.

-- The total square footage of the connecting property that can be served by the 12” main extension, as
determined by the City, is divided into the total construction costs of the 12” main extension to deterinine
the pro-rata share cost per square foot:

Total engineering/design/easement/construction costs: $250,000
Total square footage of properties that can be served by the main: 2,250,000 sq. ft.
Pro-rata cost share per square foot: $0.111 or 11.1 cents per sq. fi.

APPLICANTS MUST ENTER INTO A PRO-RATA REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT WITH THE
CITY OF LOCKHART IN ORDER TO BE ELIGIBLE TO RECEIVE REIMBURSEMENT FOR A
MAIN EXTENSION. THE CITY MAY ACCEPT OR REJECT ANY APPLICATION FOR
REIMBURSEMENT. A SAMPLE AGREEMENT IS ATTACHED FOR INFORMATIONAL
PURPOSES ONLY AND MAY BE AMENDED BY THE CITY TO REFLECT THE FAIR
APPORTIONMENT OF COSTS, AS DETERMINED IN THE CITY’S SOLE DISCRETION.

CITY APPROVAL OF THE CALCULATED COSTS OF THE MAIN EXTENSION, AND CITY
DETERMINATION OF ITS SHARE, IF ANY, OF THE COSTS OF THE OFF-SITE PORTION, ARE
REQUIRED BEFORE THE PRO-RATA REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT MAY BE EXECUTED.,



PRO-RATA REIMBURSEMENT APPLICATION
FOR
WATER/WASTEWATER MAIN EXTENSION

APPLICANT/DEVELOPER:

ADDRESS, TELEPHONE NUMBER, EMAIL:

TYPE OF MAIN EXTENSION: ( ) WATER ( ) WASTEWATER

PROJECT/SUBDIVISION NAME:

PROPERTY LOCATION (attach map):

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION (attach plat/survey):

CONTACT PERSON:

TELEPHONE NUMBER & EMAIL.:

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT/SUBDIVISION:

SELECT ONE (subject to City’s approval}:

() APPLICANT/DEVELOPER WILL CONSTRUCT THE WATER/WASTEWATER
EXTENSION AT ITS OWN EXPENSE.

( ) THE CITY WILL CONSTRUCT THE WATER/WASTEWATER EXTENSION AFTER
APPLICANT/DEVELOPER DEPOSITS SUFFICIENT FUNDS OR OTHER SECURITY AS
REQUIRED BY THE CITY.

%0









5. The Developer may be reimbursed for the costs of the Offsite Portion, at the City’s discretion, based
on pro rata reimbursement of funds collected by the City from third parties for connecting to the Offsite
Portion. An example of such calculation is attached, for informational purposes only. Reimbursement
will be considered only for connections to the Offsite Portion that are made within five (5) years of the
completion of the Main and its acceptance by the City. Impact fees and tap fees are not included in
reimbursement calculations. Reimbursement will only be made to the Developer that originally paid for
the Main, less any portion paid by the City for oversizing. The City will make reasonable efforts to locate
and reimburse the original Developer with third party pro-rata funds collected for connections to the
Offsite Portion during the five year period after the Main is accepted by the City. However, it is the
original Developer’s responsibility to keep the City informed of its whereabouts. IF the original
Developer cannot be located by the City, the collected third party funds will be paid to the appropriate
City utility maintenance and operations fund.

6. Upon completion of the Offsite Portion by the Developer, the Developer will furnish the City with a
certified itemized list of quantities, materials and any related construction costs for the Offsite Portion,
Such itemized list, after audit and approval by the City, will determine the actual construction cost of the
Offsite Portion, which will be used to determine the actual pro-rata cost shares, less the Developer’s pro-
rata share, of third party owners when they make application to connect to the Off-site Portion. If the City
constructs the Main, the City’s actual costs will be used to calculate pro-rata cost shares, less the
Developer’s pro-rata share, of third party owners who connect to the Off-site Portion.

7. The Developer on behalf of itself, its contractors and its agents covenants and agrees to hold harmless
and indemnify the City from and against any and all claims for personal injury (including death) or
property damage which may arise from the Main construction operations performed under the terms of
this agreement; and the Developer also agrees and does hereby agree to indemnify and save the City
harmless from all claims growing out of the lawful demands of contractors, subcontractors, taborers,
workmen, mechanics, material, men and suppliers incurred in the performance of this agreement. The
Developer will furnish to the City satisfactory evidence of the discharge of such claims prior to
completion of the Main and its acceptance by the City.

8. This agreement will terminate (a) one year after its date of execution if construction of the Main has
not begun, (b) three years after the date of execution if construction of the Main has not been completed
and accepted by the City, or (c) five years or less after the Main is completed and accepted by the City.
Upon termination, no reimbursement funds will be paid to the Developer. However, Section 3 of this
agreement shall survive such termination.

AGREED TO and EXECUTED on , 20

Vance Rodgers, City Manager
City Of Lockhart, Texas
Authorized Developer Representative

Printed Name Signature Date

Date approved by City Council:

€D



CITY OF LOCKHART

EXAMPLE OF REIMBURSEMENT CALCULATIONS FOR MAIN EXTENSION:

Main Project: 2000 linear feet to nearest sewer main or manhole from nearest point of development.
-- Project engineer, with city approval, determines an 8" main is required for the development.

-- City determines that a 12 main is desired for area including the development, and city engineer
determines the difference in costs between the 8" and 12” mains.

-- At its discretion, City may pay for all or a portion of the difference in construction costs between the
8” and 12” mains. If a larger main is needed to lay at a flatter grade to accommodate the developer,
the City may not participate in the oversized main.

-- Upon connection to the Offsite Portion of the main extension, a property (including the development)
will be assessed a pro-rata share of the total construction costs of the Offsite Portion of the main, based
on the square footage of the property, or any portion of it, that can be served by the Offsite Portion.

-- The total square footage of the connecting property that can be served by the 12” main extension, as
determined by the City, is divided into the total construction costs of the 12” main extension to determine
the pro-rata share cost per square foot:

Total engineering/design/easement/construction costs: $250,000
Total square footage of properties that can be served by the main: 2,250,000 sq. fi.
Pro-rata cost share per square foot: $0.111 or 11.1 cents per sq. ft.

APPLICANTS MUST SIGN AN EXTENSION APPLICATION IF INTERESTED AND INDICATE
THE DESIRE TO PARTICIPATE IN PRO-RATA REIMBURSEMENT PROGRAM WITH THE CITY
OF LOCKHART. THE CITY MAY ACCEPT OR REJECT ANY APPLICATION. A SAMPLE
AGREEMENT IS ATTACHED FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY AND MAY BE
AMENDED BY THE CITY TO REFLECT THE FAIR APPORTIONMENT OF COSTS, AS
DETERMINED IN THE CITY’S SOLE DISCRETION.

CITY APPROVAL OF THE CALCULATED COSTS OF THE MAIN EXTENSION, AND CITY
DETERMINATION OF ITS SHARE, IF ANY, OF THE COSTS OF THE OFF-SITE PORTION, ARE
REQUIRED BEFORE THE PRO-RATA REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT MAY BE EXECUTED.

































to $134,000 to help pay HILL. COUNTRY FOODWORKS, LLC, for costs of improvements
to the Properties and/or equipment, and shall use additional funds of up to $52,000 to employ a
minimum of 20 Full Time Equivalent (“FTE”) employees with an average annual wage of
$30,250 provided that appropriate proof of employment and wages throughout the three (3) year
period are validated, for a total project value not to exceed $186,000.

WHEREAS, the LEDC held a public hearing and discussed and approved this project on
March 13, 2017.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Lockhart City Council as follows:

SECTION 1. That real property located in Lockhart Industrial Park II is to be used to induce
job creation and investment in Lockhart.

SECTION 2. That the Lockhart Economic Development Corporation proposes the project to the
Lockhart City Council for approval of the sale of land, building, building improvements, and
professional services in an amount not to exceed $186,000; for the creation of 20 FTE primary
jobs; and, for the development, retention, or expansion of a manufacturing and industrial facility
which may include expenditures required or suitable for infrastructure necessary to promote or
develop a new or expanded business enterprise.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Lockhart City Council held on this 21st
day of March 2017.

City of Lockhart

ATTEST: Lew White, Mayor

Connie Constancio, TRMC
City Secretary

Resolution No 2017-07 O{ ‘5

Page 2 of 2






STATE OF TEXAS )

) CITY OF LOCKHART
COUNTY OF CALDWELL )

CHAPTER 380 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVE AGREEMENT

AMENDED 3-21-2017

This Agreement (the *“Agreement”), which replaces with amendments the 380
Agreement entered into on October 18, 2016, is entered into by and between the City of
Lockhart, Texas (the “CITY”), a Texas Home Rule City, and Hill Country Foodworks, Inc., a
Texas Corporation duly authorized to conduct business in the State of Texas (“Company™). The
CITY and Company may also be referred to collectively as the “Parties” or individually as a
“Party.”

PART 1. RECITALS

Section 1.01. Company produces food products. .

Section 1.02. Company has informed the CITY that financial incentives from the CITY
would induce the company to locate a manufacturing and distribution center in the City of
Lockhart.

Section 1.03. By locating the facility in the City of Lockhart, the Company will create
new jobs, generate new sales tax revenues, and add improvements to real property and personal
property and inventory subject to ad valorem tax assessment.

Section 1.04. The CITY is authorized under Chapter 380 of the Texas Local
Government Code to offer certain economic development incentives for public purposes,
including the promotion of local economic development and the stimulation of business and

commercial activity in the City.

Chapter 380 Contract March 21, 2017
City of Lockhart &
Hill Country Foodworks Inc 215 E MLK Ir industrial Blvd. q 7
Page 1 of 4






Section 2.04. “Land” means the real property within the city limits of the City of
Lockhart, Texas upon which the Project shall be constructed and operated, commonly known as
215 E. MLK, JR. Industrial Blvd., and the adjacent lot to the east, Lockhart, Caldwell County,
Texas

Section 2.05. “Personal Property” means all materials, supplies, equipment, inventory
or other personal property attributable to the Business on the Land subject to ad valorem taxes.

Section 2.06. “Personal Property Taxes” arc the City’s share of the ad valorem taxes
received from the Caldwell County Tax Assessor-Collector on the value of all Company
Personal Property subject to personal property taxes in Caldwell County.

Section 2.07. “Project” means the construction and operation of the Business on the
Land and the addition of Real Property Improvements (as defined below) and the creation and
maintenance of new Jobs.

Section 2.08. “Real Property Improvements” means improvements, expansions, and
added manufacturing equipment to the existing building located at 215 E. MLK, JR. Industrial
Blvd which is on Lot 4 A of the amending plat for the Resubdivision of Lot 4, Block I, and Lots
6, 7 and 15, Block 2, of the Amending Plat for the Resubdivison Plat Lockhart Industrial Park II,
Revision No. 2.

Section 2.09. “Real Property Taxes” are the City’s share of the ad valorem taxes
received from the Caldwell County Tax Assessor-Collector on the value of the Company’s real
property subject to real property taxes in Caldwell County.

Section 2.10. The “Term” of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and
continue until all parties’ obligations in this Agreement have been met. The Effective Date of

this Agreement will be the date of signature of the second party to execute the Agreement.

Chapter 380 Contract March 21, 2017
City of Lockhart &
Hill Country Foodworks Inc -215 E MLK Jr Industrial Blvd.
Page 3 of 14 DI q






Section 4.01. Grant Payments. Subject to the requirements and limitations of this
Article, other terms and conditions of this Agreement, and Company’s compliance with this
Agreement, the CITY will make Grant Payments to Company in the manner set forth in this
Article.

Section 4.02. Three-Year Payment Period. Provided Company has timely completed
construction of the Real Property Improvements and created and maintained at least the number
of Jobs required by this Agreement each year, the CITY shall make Grant Payments to Company
once per year for a period of three (3) years.

Section 4.03. Time for Payment. Grant Payments will be made by the CITY on or
before March 31 in the calendar year immediately following the full calendar year in which the
property taxes upon which the Grant Payment amount is based are generated. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, the CITY shall not be required to make Grant Payment during any applicable year
unless and until:

(@) Company has submitted all information required under this Agreement, and/or
reasonably requested by the CITY, necessary to verify its compliance;

(b) The Property Taxes for the prior year are received by the City from the Caldwell
County Tax Assessor-Collector; and

(d) Funds are appropriated by the Lockhart City Council for the specific purpose of
making a Grant Payment under this Agreement as part of the City’s ordinary budget and
appropriations approval process.

ARTICLE V
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF COMPANY

As of the Effective Date, Company represents and warrants to the CITY, as follows:

Chapter 380 Coniract March 21, 2017
City of Lockhart &
Hill Country Foodworks Inc -215 E MLK Jr industrial Blvd. D \
Page 5of 14 l



Section 5.01. Organization. Company is a Texas Corporation duly organized, validly
existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of Texas and authorized to conduct
business in the State of Texas. The activities that company proposes to carry on at the Land may
lawfully be conducted by Company.

Section 5.02. Authority. The execution, delivery and performance by Company of this
Agreement are within Company’s powers and have been duly authorized.

Section 5.03. Valid and Binding Obligation. This Agreement is the legal, valid and
binding obligation of Company, enforceable against Company in accordance with its terms
except as limited by applicable relief, liquidation, conservatorship, bankruptcy, moratorium,
rearrangement, insolvency, reorganization or similar laws affecting the rights or remedies of
creditors generally, as in effect from time to time.

Section 5.04. No Defaults. Company is not in default in the performance, observance or
fulfillment of any of the obligations, covenants or conditions contained in any Agreement or
instrument to which Company is a party or by which Company or any of its property is bound
that would have any material adverse effect on Company’s ability to perform under this
Agreement.

Section 5.05 Full Disclosure. Neither this Agreement nor any schedule or exhibit
attached hereto or provided by Company in connection with the negotiations of this Agreement
contains any untrue statement of a material fact or omits to state any material fact necessary to
keep the statements contained herein or therein, in the light of the circumstances in which they
were made, from being misleading.

ARTICLE VI

PERSONAL LIABILITY OF PUBLIC OFFICIALS
AND LIMITATIONS ON CITY OBLIGATIONS

Chapter 380 Contract March 21, 2017

City of Lockhart & }
Hill Country Foodworks Inc <215 E MLK Jr [ndustrial Blvd. l O

Page 6 of 14



Section 6.01. Personal Liability of Public Officials. No officer, employee, agent or
elected official of the CITY shall be personally liable for any liability arising under or growing
out of this Agreement.

Section 6.02. Limitations on CITY Obligations. The Grant Payments made and any
other financial obligation of the CITY hereunder shall be paid solely from lawfuily available
funds that have been budgeted and appropriated each year during the Term by the CITY as
provided in this Agreement. Under no circumstances shall the CITY s obligations hereunder be
deemed to create any debt within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory provision.
Consequently, notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the CITY shall have no
obligation or liability to pay any Grant Payments or other payments unless the CITY budgets and
appropriates funds to make such payments during the CITY’s fiscal year in which such Grant
Payment(s) or other payments are payable under this Agreement. If the CITY fails to appropriate
funds for a Grant Payment, Company may at its option terminate this Agreement effective upon
written notice to the CITY as provided herein.

Section 6.03. No Recourse. Company shall have no recourse against the CITY for the
CITY’s failure to budget and appropriate funds during the fiscal year to meet the purposes and
satisfy its obligations under this Agreement.

ARTICLE VII
INFORMATION

Section 7.01. Information. Company shall, at such times and in such form as the CITY
may reasonably request from Company, provide information conceming the performance of
Company’s obligations under this Agreement.

Section 7.02. Annual Certification Related to Jobs and Compliance with Agreement.

Beginning in the year the Company receives its certificate of occupancy and continuing each

Chapter 380 Contract March 21, 2017
City of Lockhart &
Hill Country Foodworks Inc -215 E MLK Jr Industrial Bivd. D ?
Page 7 of 14 [



year thereafter during the term of this Agreement, Company shall submit to the CITY, on or
before January 31, a certified statement acceptable to the city manager of the CITY, signed by an
authorized officer or employee of Company, providing the following information:

(2) the total number of Jobs created in Lockhart in the preceding calendar year
and cumulatively since the Effective Date, together with the annual average salary for each such
Job at $30,250; and

(b) a statement that it is in full compliance with its obligations under this
Agreement or, if not in full compliance, a statement disclosing the nature of any noncompliance
and any reasons therefore. After receiving a timely submitted certified statement, the CITY shall
have 60 calendar days to notify Company in writing of any questions that the CITY may have
concerning any of the information provided by Company, and Company shall diligently work in
good faith to respond to such questions to the CITY s reasonable satisfaction within 10 business
days of receiving such questions.

Section 7.03. Review of Company Records. Company agrees that the CITY will have
the right to review the business records of Company that relate to the Project and Company’s
compliance with the terms of this Agreement at any reasonable time and upon at least 7 days’
prior notice to Company in order to determine compliance with this Agreement. To the extent
reasonably possible, Company shall make all such records available in elecironic form or
otherwise available to be accessed through the intemet.

ARTICLE VIII
DEFAULT, TERMINATION AND REMEDIES

Section 8.01. Remedies for Noncompliance with Jobs Obligations. If, at the end of any
applicable year during the Term, and subject to Sec. 3.01 above, Company is not in compliance

with the obligations to create Jobs as provided in this Agreement, the CITY may, at its option,

Chapter 380 Contract March 21, 2017

City of Lockhart & :
Hill Country Foodworks Inc -215 E MLK Jr Industrial Blvd. D
Page 8 of 14



terminate the Agreement by sending written notice of termination to Company or withhold Grant
Payments that would otherwise be due to Company for that year. If the CITY elects to withhold
Grant Payments, the CITY will resume Grant Payments for any subsequent years during the
Term in which Company is in compliance; however, any Grant Payments withheld by the CITY
for any years during which Company is not in compliance shall be deemed forfeited by
Company and the CITY shall not be liable for payment of such Grant Payments.

Section 8.02. Notice of Default. At any time during the Term of this Agreement that
Company is not in compliance with its obligations under this Agreement other than its
obligations to create Jobs, the CITY may send Company notice of such non-compliance. If such
non-compliance is not cured within 60 days after Company’s receipt of such notice or, if non-
compliance is not reasonably susceptible to cure within 60 days as determined by the CITY, a
cure 18 not begun within such 60-day period and thereafter continuously and diligently pursued to
completion (in either event, a “Cure”), then the CITY may, at its option, terminate this
Agreement or withhold Grant Payments until such Cure occurs. Except as provided under section
8.01, upon a Cure by Company, the Grant Payments shall automatically and immediately resume
except any Grant Payments withheld by the CITY for any years during which Company is not in
compliance shall be deemed forfeited by Company and the CITY shall not be liable for payment
of such Grant Payments. Except as to circumstances arising from an Event of force majeure, the
Term shall not be extended as a result of any Cure period under this section.

Section 8.03. Remedies. Upon breach of any obligation under this Agreement, in
addition to any other remedies expressly set forth in this Agreement with respect to such breach,
the aggrieved party shall have such remedies as are available in law or equity for breach of
contract; provided, however, that no party shall be liable to any other party for incidental or

Chapter 380 Contract March 21, 2017

City of Lockhart &
Hill Country Foodworks [nc <215 E MLK Jr Industrial Blvd. \ D 9
Page 9 of 14



consequential damages. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the CITY, in entering into this
Agreement, does not waive its immunity from suit or any other limitations on its liability,
contractual or otherwise, as granted by the Texas Constitution or applicable laws of the State of
Texas.

Section 8.04. Delinquent Fees/Taxes. The City may deduct from any Grant Payments,
as an offset, any delinquent and unpaid fees, sums of money or other fees, charges or taxes
assessed and owed by Company to or for the benefit of the City of Lockhart.

Section 8.05. Force Majeure. Force magjeure means an event beyond the reasonable
control of a Party obligated to perform an act or take some action under this Agreement
including, but not limited to, acts of God, earthquake, fire, explosion, war, civil insurrection, acts
of public enemy, act of civil or military authority, sabotage, terrorism, floods, lightning,
hurricanes, tornadoes, severe snow storms or utility disruption, strikes, lockouts, major
equipment failure or the failure of any major supplier to perform its obligations.

Section 8.06. Indemnification. The CITY shall not be obligated to pay any
indebtedness or obligations of Company. Company hereby agrees to indemnify and hold the
CITY, and the CITY’s elected officials, officers, employees, agents and officials harmless from
and against (i) any indebtedness or obligations of Company, Business, the Project and any
improvements to the Land, or any other obligation of Company as provided herein, and (ii)
breach of any representation, warranty, covenant or Agreement of company contained in this
Agreement, without regard to any notice or cure provisions. Company’s indemnification
obligation hereunder shall include payment of the CITY’s reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs and

expenses with respect thereto.

Chapter 380 Contract March 21, 2017

City of Lockhart &
Hill Country Foodworks Inc -215 E MLK Ir [ndustrial Blvd. D b
Page 10 of 14






Either Party may change the address and contact information for notices under this section by
providing written notice of such change to the other Party.

Section 9.06. Applicable Law and Venue. This Agreement is made and shall be
construed and interpreted under the laws of the State of Texas. Venue for any legal proceedings
shall lic in State courts located in Caldwell County, Texas. Venue for any matters in federal court
will be in the United States District Court for the Western District of Texas in Austin, Texas.

Section 9.07. Severability. In the event any provision of this Agreement is illegal,
invalid, or unenforceability under the applicable present of future laws, then, and in that event, it
is the intention of the Parties that the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby,
and it is also the intention of the parties to this Agreement that in lieu of each clause or provision
that is found to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable a provision be added to this Agreement
which is legal, valid and enforceability and is a similar in terms as possible to the provision
found to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable.

Section 9,08. Third Parties. The CITY and Company intend that this Agreement shall
not benefit or create any right or cause of action in and on behalf of any third-party beneficiary,
or any individual or entity other than the CITY and Company or permitted assignees of the CITY
and Company, except that the indemnification and hold harmless obligations by Company
provided for in this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of the indemnities named therein.

Section 9.09. No Joint Venture. Nothing contained in this Agreement is intended by
the parties to create a partnership or joint venture between the Parties, and any implication to the
contrary is hereby expressly disavowed. It is understood and agreed that this Agreement does not

create a joint enterprise, nor does it appoint either Party as an agent of the other for any purpose

Chapter 380 Contract March 21, 2017
City of Lockhart & g
Hill Country Feodworks Inc -215 E MLK Jr [ndustrial Blvd. D
Page 12 of 14 \



whatsoever. Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, neither Party shall in any way
assume any of the liability of the other for acts of the other or obligations of the other.
Section 9.10. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts,

each of which shall be considered an original, but all of which constitute one instrument,

EXECUTED in duplicate originals to be effective as of the Effective Date.

CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS

By: Date:
Lew White, Mayor

ATTEST:

By: Date:

Connie Constancio, City Secretary

HILL COUNTRY FOODWORKS

By: Date:
Kyle Green
President

Chapter 380 Contract March 21, 2017

City of Lockhart & é“
Hill Country Foedworks Inc -215 E MLK Jr Industrial Blvd. D /,
Page 13 of 14



EXHIBIT “A”

Staff recommends a three year tax rebate of new property taxes on improvements,
expansions, and equipment at the location at 100% for Year 1, 50% for Year 2, and 40% for
Year 3, based on the Company locating, constructing and operating a manufacturing and
distribution center in the City of Lockhart, and creating 20 new full-time equivalent jobs at the
center in the first year and maintaining an average of 20 such jobs each year for the term of the

Agreement with an average wage of $30,250 annually.

City Ad Valorem Taxes Tax Rebate Jobs Created/Retained
Year 1 100% 20 created

Year 2 50% 20 average retained
Year 3 40% 20 average retained

Should company fail to maintain the average of 20 jobs in any one year, the tax rebate shall be
reduced by the same equivalent ratio. For example, if in any one year, the average number of
jobs is 10, the rebate will be reduced by 50% (10/20=50%).

Tax rebates can only be considered for new buildings constructed, improvements to the existing

building and/or equipment added for manufacturing. The tax rebate will be available during the

three vear period beginning the first property tax levied vear after purchase property.

Chapter 380 Contract March 21, 2017
City of Lockhart &
Hill Country Foadworks Inc -215 E MLK Jr Industrial Blvd. ! D
Page 14 of 14 [



Proposed Tax Rebate Data Sheet- Hill Country Food Works 215 E MLK JR INDUSTRIAL BLVD

All subject to approval by Governing Bodies 13-Mar-17
Buildings and Furniture,
Existing Bildg Property Fixtures
and Property Improvements and
Year Not Eligible * Equipment Total Net Value w/o land
1 $380,000 $320,000 $500,000 $820,000 $720,000
2 $100,000 $100,000 S 100,000
3 $100,000 $100,000 S 100,000
Totals $320,000 $700,000 $1,020,000 $920,000
Yril Yr2 Yr3
Tax Rate 100% 50% 40% Total
City S 0.7227 S 5,203.44 S 2,963.07 S 1,994.65 S 10,161
County S 0.7752 S 5581.44 S 3,17832 S 2,852.74 S 11,612
Totals By Yr 5 10,784.88 S 6,141.39 § 4,847.39 S 21,773.66

* 700,000-380,000= 5320,000

p——
———
—

03/14/201710:47 AMU:\Vance Files\1A Public Works\LEDC\HILL COUNTRY FOODWORKS MAY 2016 215 E MLK JR\2017 FORWARD CHALLENGES\HILL
COUNTRY FOODWORKS POTENTIAL VALUE OF INCENTIVES 3-13-2017.xIsx















Section 4.02, Three-Year Payment Period. Provided Company has timely completed
construction of the Real Property Improvements and created and maintained at least the number
of Jobs required by this Agreement each year, the CITY shall make Grant Payments to Company
once per year for a period of three (3) years.

Section 4.03. Time for Payment, Grant Paymehts will be made by the CITY on or
before March 31 in the calendar year immediately following the full calendar year in which the
property taxes upon_which the Grant Payment amount is based are generated. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, the CITY shall not be required to make Grant Payment during any applicable year
unless and until;

() Company has submitted all information required under this Agreement, and/or
reasonably requested by the CITY, necessary to verify its compliance;

(b) The Property Taxes for the pric;r year are received by the City from the Caldwell
County Tax Assessor-Collector; and

(d) Funds are appropriated by the Lockhart City Council for the specific purpose of
making a Grant Payment under this Agreement as part of the City’s ordinary budget and
appropriations api)roval Process.

ARTICLE V
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF COMPANY

As of the Effective Date, Company represents and warrants to the CITY, as follows:

Section 5.01. Organization. Company is a Texas Corporation duly organized, validly
existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of Texas and authorized to conduct
business in the State of Texas. The activities that company proposes to carry on at the Land may

lawfully be conducted by Company.

Chapter 380 Coniract
City of Lockhart &
Hill Country Foodworks Inc -215 E MLK Jr Industrial Blvd. and Adjacent Lot to the East

Page § of 14 l { (0
























Section 9,10, Countcrparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts,

each of which shall be considered an original, but all of which constitute one instrument.

EXECUTED in duplicate originals to be effective as of the Effective Date.

CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS

By: ﬁw M/M) Date:  (0-/&-/ b

Lew White, Mayor

ATTEST:

-

-

By: _&MMM Date: /0/[3"%“9

Connie Constancio, City Sccretary

HILL COUNTRY FOODWORKS

By: %een‘/ . Date: 1 0{; 2 H éz

restdent

Chapter 380 Conlract
City of Lockhart &
Hill Country Foodworks Inc -215 E MLK Jr Industrial Blvd. and Adjacent Lot o the East
Page 13 of 14







































La)

COUNCILMEMBER BOARD/COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS

PAGE 3 Updated 03/08/2017
Councilmember Board/Commission Appointee Date Appointed

Mayor — Lew White Airport Board John Hinnekamp 03/07/17
Board of Adjustment Mike Annas 03/07/17
Construction Board Ralph Gerald 03/07/17
Ec Dev. Revolving Loan Barbara Gilmer 03/07/17
Ec Dev. Corp. 4 Cent Sales Tax Alan Fielder, Vice-Chair 03/0717
Electric Board Joe Colley, Chair 03/07/17
Historical Preservation John Lairsen 03/07/17
Library Board Stephanie Riggins 03/07/17
Parks and Recreation Albert Villalpando, Chair 03/07/17
Planning & Zoning Bill Faust 03/07/17
ETJ Rep-Impact Fee Adv Comm | Larry Metzler 03/07/17
03/07/17
District 1 — Juan Mendoza Airport Board Larry Burrier 03/07/17
Board of Adjustment Lori Rangel 03/07/17
Construction Board Mike Votee 03/07/17
Eco Dev. Revolving Loan Ryan Lozano 03/07/17
Eco Dev. Corp, 2 Cent Sales Tax | Dyral Thomas 03/07/17
Electric Board Thomas Herrera 03/07117
Historical Preservation Victor Corpus 03/07/17
Library Board Shirley Williams 03/07/17
Parks and Recreation Linda Thompson-Bennett 03/07/17
Planning & Zoning Marcos Villalobos 03/07/17
District 2— John Castillo Airport Board Reed Coats 03/07/17
Board of Adjustment Juan Juarez 03/07/17
Construction Board Israel Zapien 03/07/17
EcoDev. Revolving Loan Rudy Ruiz 03/07/17
Eco Dev. Corp. ¥ Cent Sales Tax | Fermin Islas, Chair 03/07/17
Electric Board James Briceno 03/07/17
Historical Preservation Ron Faulstich 03/07/17
Library Board Donnie Wilson 03/07/17
Parks and Recreation James Torres 03/07/17
Rob Ortiz, Alternate 03/07/17
Planning & Zoning Manuel Oliva 03/07/17




COUNCILMEMBER BOARD/COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS PAGE 4 Updated 03/08/2017

District 3 — Benny Hilburn Airport Board Ray Chandler 03/07/17
Board of Adjustment Anne Clark, Vice-Chair 03/07/17

Nic Irwin (Alternate) 03/07/17

Kirk Smith (Alternate) 03/07/17

Construction Board Jerry West, Vice-Chair 03/07/17

Eco Dev. Revolving Loan Lew White, Chair 03/07117

Eco Dev. Corp. 2 Cent Sales Tax | Ken Doran 03/07/17

Electric Board Thomas Stephens 03/07/17

Historical Preservation Ronda Reagan 03/07/17

Library Board Jean Clark Fox, Chair 03/07/17

Parks and Recreation William Burnett 03/07/17

Planning & Zoning Philip McBride, Chair 03/07/17

District 4 - Jeffry Michelson Airport Board Mark Brown, Vice-Chair 03/07/17
Board of Adjustment Wayne Reeder 03/07/17

Construction Board Rick Winnett 03/07/17

Eco Dev. Revolving Loan Frank Coggins 03/07/17

Eco Dev. Corp. 2 Cent Sales Tax | Morris Alexander 03/07/17

Electric Board James Paul Denny, Vice-Chair | 03/07/17
Historical Preservation Kathy McCormick 03/07/17
Library Board Donaly Brice 03/07/17
Parks and Recreation Russell Wheeler 03/07/17
Planning & Zoning Mary Beth Nickel 03/07/17
Mayor Pro-Tem (At-Large} — | Airport Board Andrew Reyes 03/07/17
Angie Gonzales-Sanchez Board of Adjustment Laura Cline, Chair 03/07/17
Construction Board Paul Martinez 03/07/17
Eco Dev. Revolving Loan Irene Yanez 03/07/17
Eco Dev. Corp. % Cent Sales Tax | Bernie Rangel 03/07/17
Historical Preservation Juan Alvarez, Jr. 03/07/17
Library Board Jodi King 03/07/17
Parks and Recreation Chris Schexnayder 03/07/17
Planning & Zoning Philip Ruiz, Vice-Chair 03/07/17




COUNCILMEMBER BOARD/COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS PAGE § Updated 03/08/2017
At-Large - Brad Westmoreland | Airport Board Jayson “Tex” Cordova 03/07/17

Board of Adjustment Severo Castillo 03/07/17

Construction Board (Alternate) ! Gary Shafer 03/07/17

Eco Dev. Revolving Loan Edward Strayer 03/07/17

Eco Dev. Corp. %: Cent Sales Tax | Frank Estrada 03/07/17

Historical Preservation Terrance Gahan 03/07/17

Library Board Rebecca Lockhart 03/07/17

Parks and Recreation Dennis Placke 03/0717

Planning & Zoning Christina Black 03/07/17

Charter Review Commission Ray Sanders 03/01/16 — Michelson

(Five member commission) Bill Hernandez 03/01/16 — Michelson

Term — 24 months after | Roland Velvin 03/01/16 — Michelson

appointment Elizabeth Raxter 03/01/16 — Hilburn
Alan Fielder (3/15/16 — Hilburn

Sign Review Committee Gabe Medina (3/17/15 - Mayor Pro-Tem Sanchez

(no longer meeting) Neto Madrigal 04/21/15 - Councilmember Mendoza
Terry Black 03/17/15 - Councilmember Hilburn

Kenneth Sneed
Johnny Barron, Jr.
Tim Clark

03/17/15 — Mayor White
03/17/15 — Councilmember Castillo
03/17/15- Councilmember Michelson

Le!




Lockhart City Council
FY 16-17 Goals
Revised 3-10-2016, 8:30 pm

Priority

Council Person

Goals Submitted

City Manager Comments

Infastructure

Complete 2015 CO projects and need budget of $250,000 per year for
streets, continue water and sewer main replacements; continue electric
distribution maintenance plan-get new substation on line. Replace bad

1 Castillo water raw water mains and find additional water for the future.
Department Heads to Budget Salary Increases for city employees so that we can keep our Est Cost Per % Increase Annually: Gen Fund (Not Civil Serv) $
1|/Gonzales-Sanchez current city employees. 29,000; Gen Fund Civil Serv $ 24,000; Other/Utilities: $ 15,000- Add'l

Improve City Cemetery with GF Expiring debt saving and/or Cemetery Tax

Cemetery Tax up to 5 cents allowed by State Law. Expiring GF debt

1 Hilburn committed to Police and Fire increased pay rates. ($132,000)
Find ways to use activity center for multi-purpose use. (basketball, volleyball). Funding source:
1 Mendoza Different companies in town If approved by Council staff would approach local businesses
Continue to improve infrastructure (drainage, street repairs) throughout the city
1 Michelson Complete 2015 CO and budget $250,000 per year for street materials
Enforce ordinances that pertain to unsightly properties all over town.
Make homeowners/residents (because some may be renters) take pride in their environment.
It is an eyesore to drive around town and see overgrown properties, junked cars, and stacks of
trash on porches, in yards and driveways. All levels of socio-economic residents in this town
have shown evidence of being disrespectful to their environment. City has no esthetics ordinance currently. The term "unsightly" is
1/Westmoreland subjective and is difficult to prove in court.

[y

White

Economic Development-expanding budget to get staff qualified to help Sandra with
recruitment, working with LEDC to either build Spec building or invest in more property, Main St
program to relieve Sandra of a lot of those duties

Main Street Program would require another person and funding to work
with local businesses while Economic Development would conscentrate
on new businesses and new jobs

Castillo

Economic Development

Need 12-15,000 sf of retail spaces with reasonable lease per sf and
buildings that are 20 to 50,000 sf for industrial and maunufacturing

N

Gonzales-Sanchez

Infrastructure: Continue City Infrastructure: Drainage, Street Repairs, Completion of Curbing,
Brighter Lighting in Neighborhoods

Complete 2015 CO projects and need budget of $250,000 per year for
streets, continue water and sewer main replacements; continue electric
distribution maintenance plan-get new substation on line. Replace bad
water raw water mains and find additional water for the future. Most
streets that lack curbing will need to be totally reconstructed. Brighter
LED lights being experimented with since costs have come down.

Implement City Signage

Initial required funds up to $40,000 if City Crew does the work; total cost

2 Hilburn could be more than $70,000
New_ Park equipment. Funding Source: Each Councilmember responsible for a park and finding Estimate: $ 400,000 annually over next 4 years based on input from
2/Mendoza funding sources Parks Board Advisory Board
Continue to improve ways to attract businesses to Lockhart
Need more 12-15,000 sf of retail spaces with reasonable lease per sf
2|Michelson and buildings that are 20 to 50,000 sf for industrial and maunufacturing
Create a policy for the residency of future admininstrative positions to live within the Lockhart
city limits. If an administrator wants to be employed by the City of Lockhart, they need to reside |It is not legal to require all department heads to live in the City limits;
here. Sharing in the daily lives of our citizens seems crucial to making decisions about only the City Manager is required to do so. All non-24 emergency
2 Westmoreland Lockhart. They are paid by city taxes. response employees must live within 25 mintues of City Limis

2|White Continue street rehab Need $ 250,000 annually minimum for street work materials
. City Facilites Not sure what this includes; can asses all departments for physical
3|Castillo needs
Economic Development: Recurit more businesses especailly retail and continue efforts ;
contact existing and vacant bldg owners to see if they are willing to work with City to bring LEDC could fund another report but the company says our numbers still
these small retail businesses, as well as industrial; possibly purchasing two downtown county |should be good. Costs estimated $22,500 for updating data and
buildings when on the market for possible new businesses in the downtown area. Stronger recruitment. Prime softgood companies constantly want to be on
platform with LEDC with methods to sell Lockhart and attract businesses. Highway 183 in 12-15,000 sf and at a reasonalbe cost per sf plus higher
3/Gonzales-Sanchez traffic counts.

S:\council mtg uploaded presentations\Mar 12 2016\1 FY 16-17 CITY COUNCIL GOALS ALL SUBMITTED - REVISED 3-10-2016




Lockhart City Council
FY 16-17 Goals
Revised 3-10-2016, 8:30 pm

Priority Council Person Goals Submitted City Manager Comments
Current transportation monthly rate is $ 4 for residential and others;
$260,000 annual which helps fund labor and equipment, but is not
sufficient for materials. Another $250,000 for materials is needed
3/ Hilburn Continue improving city streets: Increase Transportation Fund annually.
Wi-Fi Free Zones Downtown Square. Funding source City Budget, School District, Downtown
3/Mendoza sponsors Rough estimate is about $12,000
Refurbish City Hall If atrium removed, add more offices estimated at $45,000 and more
outside landscaping estimated at $ 5,000; elevator going in with
3|Michelson improvements to restrooms and offices

w

Westmoreland

Approach interested and future businesses cordially.
Stringent ordinances (and the way they are approached), scare off some businesses. Let's be
friendly in a positive way.

City Mgr respectfully requests names of such businesses. He has met
with 18 business representatives over past 15 months that were looking
at Lockhart but did not come. Except for the non-residential exterior
building esthetics ordinance, none of them indicated a problem with the
current ordinances or with staff. The main problems were high land
prices and the lack of "ready built retail and industrial buildings", and
traffic counts were not high enough. Most thought the impact fee
schedules were very reasonable compared to other cities. Will continue
to work toward friendlier customer service with simplified ordinances.

Park master plan to consider park bond issue, recreation dept and staff issues

Master Plan estimate: $ 45,000, recreation dept est at least $
60,000 for a recreational professional with another $30,000 for

3/White equipment and materials
Est Cost Per % Increase Annually: Gen Fund (Not Civil Serv) $
29,000; Gen Fund Civil Serv $ 24,000; Other/Utilities: $ 15,000- Add'l
Employees Wages Cost FY 16-17 due to Civil Serv Pay Plan Expansions already
4 Castillo apprroved: $ 132,000
Police Task Force: Budget extra funds to bring pack a_much needed P'0|ICE Tas'k Force to Initial required funds up to $40,000 if City Crew does the work: total cost
address any drug and gang related problems this city is being faced with especially on the East could be more than $70,000
4/Gonzales-Sanchez  |side of our city. Possibly ask the County to assist with funding. '

Continue working on bringing industry to Lockhart: Continue supporting Ms. Mauldin

LEDC is will have sufficient funding to be more aggressive starting FY 16-|

4 Hilburn 17
4 Mendoza Training Start up: Neighborhood Watch Training and Program: Police Budget E:::utsrfgf'\ll:éih(g‘ogz:)tic:;?p\;vtiagﬁhvli)/irlcl)ig;a:g 't?yp:gs;zl_“ was not sustained
4 Michelson Improve signage on HWY 183 as well as SH130 = directing people to Lockhart Possibly use of some of the KTB grant money

Evaluate and/or change the degree of the angled parking along the 4 blocks off of the square.

This would be: Main Street from Market to Prairie Lea Street; Main Street from San Antonio

Street to Walnut Street; Commerce Street from Market Street to Prairie Lea Street, and

Commerce Street from San Antonio Street to Walnut Street. These parking spaces were made

before long vehicles were made! If ther are cars parked on both sides of the streets, only one

care can pass through at a time. Then it becomes a one lane street. | have witnessed a Estimate to black out existing thermoplastic markings, redefine layout,

differenct angled parking arrangement, and it provides more room and is much safer for the and apply new thermoplastic markings with angle parking  =$ 12,000;
4 Westmoreland drivers and pedestrians. will probably loose 4 spaces per block. 2 on each side

Branding and wayfinding—may be included in #1 Initial required funds up to $40,000 if City Crew does the work; total cost
4 White could be more than $70,000

Parks Estimate: $ 400,000 annually over next 4 years based on input from
5|Castillo Parks Board Advisory Board

Working with 6 more subdivisons, either new or expanding, and possibly

5/Gonzales-Sanchez Subdivision development to attract more businesses to Lockhart one more very large one northwest.

Improve tourism in Lockhart - City Council continue to work with and encourage Chambers of
Commerce to be more involved

Council can make this directive to Chambers when dividing out HOT

5|Hilburn funds
Finding more funding for Retail Market Study. Zip code demographics with reports. Funding LEDC could fund another |"eport but the company says our numbers stil
LEDC should be good. Costs estimated $22,500 for updating data and
5/Mendoza recruitment.

S:\council mtg uploaded presentations\Mar 12 2016\1 FY 16-17 CITY COUNCIL GOALS ALL SUBMITTED - REVISED 3-10-2016



Lockhart City Council
FY 16-17 Goals
Revised 3-10-2016, 8:30 pm

Priority

Council Person

Goals Submitted

City Manager Comments

Work with LEDC or someone equivalent to build a building to help attract business

Need more 12-15,000 sf of retail spaces with reasonable lease per sf.
Most softgood retailers want 12-15,000 on Hwy 183 at a reasonable

5|Michelson price and increased traffic volumes
Sidewalks to include lighting Funding required; for example San Jacinto to Jr High estimate is
5/White $130,000 just for materials along Maple walkway
More Events to Attract Tourism in Lockhart and Include Way Finding Signage (Hotels and Initial required funds up to $40,000 if City Crew does the work; total cost
Restaurants) could be more than $70,000. Chambers could use HOT for more
6 Gonzales-Sanchez tourism.

Continue to work on City Park improvements

Estimate: $ 400,000 annually over next 4 years based on input from

6 Michelson Parks Board Advisory Board

6 White Pursue possible ESD-EMS district Legal issue with participation by County and City of Luling preferable
Parks Improvemens: Purchase more park equipment to provide safe and fun filled parks for all |Estimate: $ 400,000 annually over next 4 years based on input from

7|Gonzales-Sanchez to use. Parks Board Advisory Board

Mendoza

Start Talks With YMCA Austin again. Seek sponsors funding if necessary

Our population hurt in previous discussions, Will pursue again. They
usually want commitment for a minimum number of individuals and
families depending on population of not only City but its metro area

~

Michelson

Work on building a civic center/ recreation center

$ 9 million plus land $ 2.5 million for about 20,000 sf plus about
$240,000 annual maintenance costs and minimum of $60,000 for
utilities; estimated revenues offset is about $60,000; take out recreation
center and cost go down about 20%. It has been reported that Bastrop is
spending over $500,000 per year to operate its civic center. Revenues
not covering costs.

~

White

Cemetery maintenance

Cemetery Tax up to 5 cents allowed by State Law

[ee]

Gonzales-Sanchez

City Hall: Refurbish with Improvements and/or Upgrades

Elevator and improvements to restrooms planned; better offices for
Connie and Sandra planned also.

©o

Gonzales-Sanchez

Convention Center

$ 9 million plus land $ 2.5 million for about 20,000 sf plus about
$240,000 annual maintenance costs and minimum of $60,000 for
utilities; estimated revenues offset is about $60,000; take out recreation
center and cost go down about 20%. It has been reported that Bastrop is
spending over $500,000 per year to operate its civic center. Revenues
not covering costs.

10

Gonzales-Sanchez

Employee: Possible additional Employee Holiday Time off-Alternating system

City emlpoyees now have 12 holidays and 1 personal holiday; time off is
granted by seniority with department head responsible for keeping
sufficient personnel to serve the public needs. Employees also receive
at least 2 weeks of vacation time. Those employees required to work on
holidays receive their normal pay plus holiday pay.

S:\council mtg uploaded presentations\Mar 12 2016\1 FY 16-17 CITY COUNCIL GOALS ALL SUBMITTED - REVISED 3-10-2016




City of Lockhart
Future Debt Payments as of 9/30/15
TOTAL

Description 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 DEBT
General Government
Hotel Tax Fund
2009 Tax & Revenue 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 520,000
Total Hotel Tax Fund P & | 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 520,000
LEDC |
2008 GO Refunding 300,000 300,000
2015 Tax & Revenue 37,357 48,093 48,093 48,044 48,103 48,152 63,645 63,670 63,513 63,543 63,555 63,643 63,687 65,647 65,544 65,575 65,482 65,579 65,538 65,676 1,182,139
Total LEDC Fund P & | 337,357 48,093 48,093 48,044 48,103 48,152 63,645 63,670 63,513 63,543 63,555 63,643 63,687 65,647 65,544 65,575 65,482 65,579 65,538 65,676 1,482,139
2015 Capital Projects Fund
2015 Tax & Revenue ‘ 122,620 122,620

|
Total 2015 Capital Projects Fund 122,620 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 122,620

[
Drainage |
2008 GO Refunding 31.00% 100,000 100,000
2015 Tax & Revenue 100,000 116,289 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 2,016,289
Total Drainage Fund P & | 200,000 116,289 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 2,116,289

[
General Fund |
2008 GO Refunding 91,210 91,210
2015 Tax & Revenue - -
Total General Fund P & | 91,210 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 91,210
Debt Service Fund
2009 Tax & Rev CO's 100.00% 333,210 331,060 328,972 327,883 336,575 329,615 737,655 742,642 741,325 743,920 750,210 749,978 753,440 7,206,485
2006 Tax & Rev CO's 100.00% 50,455 48,815 47,175 50,535 48,690 46,845 292,515
2006-A Tax & Rev CO's | 93.00% 266,916 267,594 267,890 267,803 267,332 271,128 1,608,664
2015 Tax & Revenue 12.00% 91,487 117,779 117,779 117,659 117,803 117,923 155,867 155,927 155,543 155,615 155,645 155,861 155,969 160,769 160,517 160,592 160,365 160,602 160,502 160,831 2,895,035
Total Debt Service Fund P & | 742,068 765,248 761,816 763,880 770,400 765,511 893,522 898,569 896,868 899,535 905,855 905,839 909,409 160,769 160,517 160,592 160,365 160,602 160,502 160,831 | 12,002,699

[
Total General Government 1,533,255 969,630 949,909 951,924 958,503 953,663 | 1,097,167 | 1,102,239 | 1,100,381 | 1,103,078 | 1,109,410 | 1,109,482 | 1,113,096 326,416 326,061 326,167 325,847 326,181 326,040 326,507 | 16,334,957

[

C:\Users\crodriguez\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\KDDN9DG8\Debt for Council FY16 04/12/2016



City of Lockhart
Future Debt Payments as of 9/30/15

TOTAL
Description 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 DEBT
Proprietary
Electric Fund
2008 GO Refunding 3.59% 40,379 40,379
2013 SIB Loan 30.81% 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,152 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,152 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,152 1,280,721
Total Electric Fund P & | 111,530 71,151 71,151 71,152 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,152 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,152 - - 1.321.]:00
Water Fund
2006A Tax & Rev CO's 7.00% 20,090 20,142 20,164 20,157 20,122 20,408 121,082
2008 GO Refunding 36.38% 409,192 409,192
2009 GO Refunding 86.69% 165,829 165,775 165,656 165,477 169,357 168,625 167,709 170,852 169,384 171,937 174,082 171,534 177,194 2,203,410
2015 Tax & Revenue 49.60% 378,148 486,818 486,818 486,322 486,917 487,413 644,248 644,496 642,909 643,207 643,331 644,223 644,670 664,510 663,468 663,778 662,842 663,822 663,406 664,800 | 11,966,146
2013 SIB Loan 35.80% 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 1,488,169
Total Water Fund P & | 1,055,935 755,411 755,314 754,632 759,071 759,122 894,633 898,024 894,969 897,820 900,089 898,433 904,540 747,186 746,144 746,454 745,518 746,498 663,406 664,800 | 16,187,999
Sewer Fund
2008 GO Refunding 16.36% 183,990 183,990
2009 GO Refunding 13.31% 25,461 25,452 25,434 25,407 26,002 25,890 25,749 26,232 26,006 26,398 26,728 26,336 27,206 338,302
2015 Tax & Revenue 4.30% 32,783 42,204 42,204 42,161 42,213 42,256 55,852 55,874 55,736 55,752 55,773 55,850 55,889 57,609 57,518 57,545 57,464 57,549 57,513 57,643 1,037,388
2015 Tax & Revenue TRNSF 170,305 186,594 186,302 186,653 186,945 279,275 279,421 278,487 278,662 278,735 279,261 279,523 291,203 290,590 290,773 290,222 290,798 290,554 291,374 4,905,677
2013 SIB Loan 33.39% 77,102 77,102 77,102 77,103 77,102 77,102 77,103 77,102 77,102 77,103 77,102 77,102 77,103 77,102 77,102 77,103 77,102 77,102 1,387,844
Total Sewer Fund P & | 319,336 315,064 331,334 330,973 331,971 332,193 437,979 438,629 437,331 437,915 438,338 438,549 439,721 425,914 425,210 425,421 424,788 425,449 348,067 349,017 7,853,201
Airport Fund
2000 Airport 100.00% -
Total Airport Fund P & | - - - - B - -
Total Proprietary Fund L &l 1,486,801 | 1,141,626 | 1,157,799 | 1,156,757 | 1,162,193 | 1,162,466 | 1,403,764 | 1,407,804 | 1,403,451 | 1,406,887 | 1,409,579 | 1,408,133 | 1,415,412 1,244,252 | 1,242,505 | 1,243,026 | 1,241,458 | 1,243,099 | 1,011,473 | 1,013,817 | 25,362,300
Grand Total } 3,020,056 | 2,111,256 | 2,107,708 @ 2,108,681 @ 2,120,696 | 2,116,129 | 2,500,931 | 2,510,043 | 2,503,832 | 2,509,965 | 2,518,989 | 2,517,615 2,528,508 | 1,570,668 | 1,568,566 | 1,569,193 | 1,567,305 1,569,280 | 1,337,513 | 1,340,324 | 41,697,257

C:\Users\crodriguez\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\KDDN9DG8\Debt for Council FY16 04/12/2016









